
 

 

There is an induction hearing loop system available in all meeting rooms.  Some of the 
systems are infra-red operated, if you wish to use this system then please contact 
Gemma George on 01733 452268 as soon as possible. 
 

 

AB    
CABINET 
 

MONDAY 24 MARCH 2014 
10.00 AM 
 

Bourges/Viersen Room - Town Hall 
Contact – gemma.george@peterborough.gov.uk, 01733 452268 
 

AGENDA  

 Page No 

1 Apologies for Absence 
 

 

2 Declarations of Interest 
 

 

3 Minutes of Cabinet Meetings Held on: 
 

 

 (a) 24 February 2014 
 

3 - 10 

 (b) 26 February 2014 
 

11 - 12 

ITEMS FROM SCRUTINY COMMITTEES AND COMMISSIONS 
 
4 Call-in Referral from Sustainable Growth and Environment Capital 

Scrutiny Committee of 12 March 2014 - Executive Decision - Update on 
Proposed Ground Mounted and Wind Developments at Newborough, 
Morris Fen and America Farm - FEB14/CAB/16 
 

13 - 22 

STRATEGIC DECISIONS 
 
5 Environment Capital Action Plan (ECAP) 

 
23 - 36 

6 Transforming Day Opportunities for Adults Under 65* 
 

37 - 48 

MONITORING ITEMS 
 
7 Outcome of Petitions 

 
49 - 52 

 
Circulation 
Cabinet Members 
Scrutiny Committee Representatives 
Directors, Heads of Service 
Press 
 

Any agenda item highlighted in bold and marked with an * is a ‘key decision’ involving the Council making 
expenditure or savings of over £500,000 or having a significant effect on two or more wards in Peterborough.  
These items have been advertised previously on the Council’s Forward Plan (except where the issue is 
urgent in accordance with Section 15 of the Council’s Access to Information rules).

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



 

AB 
 

MINUTES OF CABINET MEETING HELD 24 FEBRUARY 2014 
 
 
PRESENT 
 
Cabinet Members: Councillor Cereste (Chairman), Councillor Holdich, Councillor Elsey, 
Councillor Fitzgerald, Councillor North, Councillor Scott and Councillor Seaton. 
 
Cabinet Advisers:  Councillor Casey, Councillor Dalton, Councillor Goodwin and Councillor 
Todd. 
 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Walsh. 
 
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
 Councillor Dalton declared a pecuniary interest in item 4, Update on Proposed Ground 

Mounted Solar and Wind Farms at America Farm, Morris Fen and Newborough, and 
stated that he would leave the meeting room whilst the item was under discussion.  

 
3. MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD 3 FEBRUARY 2014 
 

The minutes of the meeting held on 3 February 2014 were agreed as a true and 
accurate record. 

 
ITEMS FROM SCRUTINY COMMITTEES AND COMMISSIONS 
 
4. UPDATE ON PROPOSED GROUND MOUNTED SOLAR AND WIND FARMS AT 

AMERICA FARM, MORRIS FEN AND NEWBOROUGH 
 

Cabinet received a report following a Scrutiny Commission for Rural Communities 
meeting held on 16 December 2013. The purpose of the report was for Cabinet to 
consider the recommendations arising from the Rural Commission meeting and to 
agree a way forward for the three energy parks. The recommendations from the 
Scrutiny Commission requested that Cabinet: 
 
i) Immediately stops both options (1) solar and (2) wind for the America Farm 

project due to the negative income predicted for the delayed project; and 
ii) Stops the solar panel option (1) on all three sites (America Farm, Newborough 

and Morris Fen) due to the significant total expenditure of £296 million, a poor 
return of £21 million net income and a net present value figure of only £10.5 
million’. 

 
The report further provided Cabinet with an update on: 
 
i)   An update of the latest financial projections for the three sites; 
ii)   The latest position on survey results etc. at the America Farm site; and 
iii) The feedback received to date as part of the budget consultation launched at 

the 3rd February Cabinet meeting. 
 

3



 

 The Chairman advised that Councillor David Harrington, Ward Councillor for the 
Newborough Fen site, was present and had been permitted time to address Cabinet. In 
summary, key points of concern were highlighted as follows: 

 

• Arable farmland needed to be protected in order to secure future food source. 
Reliance could not be placed solely on food coming in from abroad; 

• Agricultural industry should not be disregarded as some other industries had 
been, such as engineering and nuclear technology; 

• The Council needed to support the tenant farmers, and there were many ways 
this could be achieved such as through education and seeking joint ventures 
with other partners, for example in the likes of bio fuel production; 

• This assistance would help to keep the land in production and to secure 
agricultural skills for the future; 

• Renewable energy came in many forms and should be for the benefit of all, not 
at the expense of others; 

• The project posed a major risk to the Council’s reputation and services and it 
was unbelievable that the report proposed to ignore the concerns of the Scrutiny 
Commission; 

• The success of the venture was not guaranteed and it would not be prudent to 
take a £250 million loan in order to fund such a risky venture; 

• If the recommendations were approved, the Council would have to find at least 
£78.24 million in order to service the debt, causing further hardship to 
Peterborough; and 

• It was Councillor Harrington’s understanding that a cross party working group 
was being initiated to look at the proposals in detail and the financial 
implications across all three sites. 

 
Councillor Seaton introduced the report and addressed the recommendations arising 
from the Scrutiny Commission. An overview of the updated financial position relating to 
the America Farm site was provided, taking into account revisions to costs following 
further consultation with the market, through advisors and other developers. The 
outcome of the revisions now showed that the net income to the Council could be 
forecast as £5.9m over the 25 years, in comparison to the previous position shown of 
only £1.2m.  
 
Further key points were highlighted including confirmation from a soil survey that the 
land at America Farm was grade 3a and not grade 1 as older records had indicated; 
the Council gaining vacant possession of America Farm through the tenant 
surrendering his lifetime tenancy; the Council had assigned £3m to the cost of the grid 
connection which was deemed sufficient; the overall improved financial position on 
ground mounted schemes; the sensitivity of the financial viability of the proposals for 
the whole solar farms project under on time scenarios; and an overview of the budget 
consultation responses which highlighted very few responses received with very little 
opposition.  
 
In summarising, Councillor Seaton requested that Cabinet agree that the project at 
America Far be progressed and taken forward to a Planning Committee and that 
further consultation on the future development options for Morris Fen and Newborough 
projects be undertaken with farmers, individuals and key stakeholders. A report on the 
outcome of which would be brought back to a future meeting for decision. 
 
Cabinet considered the report and RESOLVED: 

 
1. That the project at America farm be progressed and taken to a planning committee  

for a decision subject to the satisfactory resolution of the outstanding English 
Heritage issues; 

2. That further consultation on the future development options for Morris Fen and  
Newborough projects be undertaken with farmers, individuals and key stakeholders; 

4



 

3. And that a report be brought to the March Cabinet meeting to determine a way  
forward for these two sites; and 

4. That at this stage the MTFS figures remain as set out in the budget report. 
 

 REASONS FOR THE DECISION 
 

Continuing with the solar farm at America Farm and subsequent successful completion 
would realise for the Council a net income of £6.64m over the 25 year period. 

 
 Continuing with the Option (1) Solar Farm only development and if successfully 

completed would realise for the Council a net income of between £93.62m and 
£86.67m over the 25 year period. 

 
 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

 
America Farm 

 
i) Do not progress the energy park. 

 
Morris Fen and Newborough 

 
i) Do not progress the ground mounted solar only option; and 
ii) Do not undertake further engagement and consultation work. 

 
STRATEGIC DECISIONS 
 
5. FUNDING PETERBOROUGH’S FUTURE GROWTH 

 

Cabinet received a report which included detailed proposals for the delivery of growth 
and regeneration schemes in Peterborough and for the Council’s involvement in those 
schemes. In summary, the report sought Cabinet’s approval to: 
 
i) Establish a 50:50 joint venture company with a new Peterborough Investment 

Fund to prepare viable and consented development schemes for a series of 
sites; 

ii) Participate in the governance of the Peterborough Investment Fund through 
representation of the Fund’s Investment Committee and Management Board; 

iii) Grant Option Agreements on the sites as listed within the report, to the 
Peterborough Investment Fund; 

iv) Approve the future Council office consolidation plan described in the report 
and enter into an Agreement for Lease with the Peterborough Investment 
Fund for new administrative offices to be developed on Fletton Quays; and 

v) Recommend to Council that the Treasury Management Strategy is amended 
to permit investments in Collective Investment Schemes to enable the Council 
to participate in the profits of the Peterborough Investment Fund, if it chose to 
do so. 
 

  The Chairman advised that work on proposals for a Joint Venture had been taking 
place since 2009 and it was an incredible opportunity for the city which would provide 
funding for delivery growth schemes. The investment would ensure that the city thrived, 
with continued growth in new jobs and homes.  

 
 The Director of Growth and Regeneration provided Cabinet with a further detailed 

overview of the report’s main aspects including the significant challenges faced within 
the city; the Council’s growth delivery arrangements following a series of measures 
agreed by Cabinet in December 2009 in the report entitled ‘Peterborough’s Growth 
Delivery Arrangements’ which aimed at driving forward the city’s growth ambitions in 
the wake of the economic downturn that began in 2007 and a summary of the 

5



 

proposed model and how it would work going forward, including redevelopment of a 
number of council owned sites and Council office consolidation into a purpose built 
building on Fletton Quays. 

 

Cabinet debated the report and comments and responses to queries included: 
 

• There would be no funding from Government going forward, therefore those 
involved in the development of the scheme should be congratulated on the work 
undertaken; 

• The role of Opportunity Peterborough would change to enable more focused 
economic development activity, skills and marketing of the city to businesses 
and investors; 

• Once the fund had been established, information regarding investors into the 
fund would become available once the business had been listed on the stock 
market.  

 
Cabinet considered the report and RESOLVED the following: 
 
In order to facilitate the establishment of a Peterborough investment Fund to bring 
forward development through £130m of external investment, Cabinet is recommended 
to approve: 
 
(1) The business case for an investment joint venture as attached at Appendix 1 to the 

report; 
(2) The establishment of a Joint Venture Company with a Fund regulated by a UK 

registered fund manager with a 50% equal shareholding for each party;  
(3) Investment of £3m funded from the existing capital programme, representing the 

value of the 50% shareholding in the joint venture company and match funded by 
the Fund; 

(4) Granting of Option Agreements in favour of the Fund on the sites listed within this 
report, and to be included in the asset disposal list to be agreed by Council as part 
of the Capital Strategy;  

(5) An Agreement for Lease with the Fund for the development of offices on Fletton 
Quays. 

 
Cabinet RECOMMENDED to Council: 
 
(6) Amendments to the Capital Strategy and Asset Management Plan as part of the 

Medium Term Financial Strategy to be approved by Council to include the revised 
capital programme, the sites listed in this report on the asset disposal list and the 
approach to granting Option Agreements; 

(7) Amendment to the Treasury Management Strategy as part of the Medium Term 
Financial Strategy to be approved by Council to allow the Council to elect to take 
the benefit of land transfers as units in the fund; and 

(8) Amendment of the Constitution ‘Appointments to external organisations’ to include 
the joint venture company and the Fund within the ‘key partnerships category’ to 
enable the Leader to appoint members to  
a. the Board of the Joint Venture Company 
b. the Fund investment committee 
c. the Fund management board 

 
Cabinet DELEGATED authority to the Director of Growth & Regeneration, in 
consultation with the Leader of the Council, the Director of Governance and Executive 
Director of Resources, to: 
 

 

6



 

(9) Agree the fund investment criteria, shareholders agreement and all other 
necessary documents to establish the joint venture company and the agreements 
with the Fund; and 

(10) Authorise the creation of additional organisations such as limited companies, or 
limited liability partnerships (a council wholly owned company) to hold any dividend 
bearing units in the Fund. 

 
Cabinet DELEGATED authority to the Director of Governance, in consultation with the 
Executive Director of Resources, to: 
 
(11) Agree the terms of the Agreement for Lease and to execute the transfers of land in 

response to the exercise of the Option Agreements by the Fund. 
 

 REASONS FOR THE DECISION 
 
 The proposals within the report offered the Council an opportunity to unlock significant 

investment to help bring forward key city centre regeneration sites, allowing the 
Council to further the city’s growth and regeneration with minimal additional investment 
whilst delivering potential financial and other benefits to the Council and the city.   

 
 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 

i)   Use of prudential borrowing 
 

The Council had the ability to obtain finance directly from the Public Works Loan 
Board at preferential rates of interest. It could choose to borrow in this way and 
invest in some specific growth projects, either itself or through financing of a wholly 
owned delivery model. 

 
There were, however, limitations to this approach that limited its attractiveness. For 
example, most of the schemes that the joint venture would enable would not create 
operational Council buildings on Council land. They were schemes for the city, not 
for the Council, and would not be schemes the Council would normally fund from 
borrowing.   

 
There was also a cost to borrowing finance in this way, and the nature of 
regeneration schemes tended to result in significant upfront costs and delayed 
returns, so were the Council to take this approach there would be a period of time 
where it was paying a substantial interest charge without receiving income or 
receipts from a sale of capital assets that a scheme created to offset this.  It would 
also mean that the Council was taking on 100% of the risk in the development. With 
the Council forecasting a budget deficit in 2015/16 of £18m, this approach would be 
extremely difficult.  

 

ii) Traditional Local Asset Backed Vehicle 
 

A Local Asset Backed Vehicle (LABV) was a partnership or joint venture between a 
public body and a private sector investment partner, normally over the medium or 
long-term. The public partner generally inputted assets, with the private sector 
partner providing finance and technical expertise.  In the past, there had been some 
high-profile examples created in the UK, but they were now less favoured. For 
example, the private sector firm that created the first UK LABV with Croydon 
Borough Council, John Laing, announced in January 2013 it would not be involved 
in any future partnerships.   

 
The level of delivery of schemes by LABVs had been lower than expected. Where 
they worked best was where there were ‘oven-ready’ schemes and it was clear how 
to get the best out of specific sites. Peterborough had a number of complex 
regeneration sites that were not well-matched to this approach.  LABVs, by their 

7



 

nature, also tended to be constrained to work on sites the relevant public body had 
transferred to them, whereas the JVCo proposed here would be free to work more 
widely if it was Board approved. 

 
iii) Allow the market to drive growth 
 
Whilst the UK economy was slowly recovering, it remained fragile.  There were still 
many difficulties around bank lending and financing options that restricted the ability 
of the market to deliver growth projects. Peterborough had a number of key strategic 
sites, such as Fletton Quays, which failed to come forward during the height of the 
economic boom. With significantly less public sector subsidy available today and 
more difficulties in raising private finance, relying on the market alone could be a 
significant risk.  Despite Peterborough’s recent development successes, the market 
would also want to cherry-pick the easier, lower risk sites and leave the more 
difficult ones, of which the city had a number. 

 
6. BUDGET 2014/15 AND MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY TO 2023/24 
 

Cabinet received a report as part of the Council’s agreed process for integrated finance 
and business planning. 
 
The purpose of the report was to recommend to Council budget proposals for 2014/15 
through to 2023/24, in line with the final local government finance settlement for 
2014/15 and in advance of some Department for Education specific grants being 
finalised. The Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) was presented at the meeting 
of Cabinet held on 3 February 2014 and remained the basis for Cabinet to recommend 
the budget for approval by Council. The report was supplemented with the MTFS and 
budget consultation and was due to be refreshed to include the updates contained 
within the report, for Council on 5 March 2014. 
 
The report further provided an update on the budget consultation responses received 
so far, recognising that the consultation remained open until 4 March 2014 and that 
some meetings with key stakeholder groups had yet to take place. In addition, the 
report had regard to the revised budget timetable approved by Council at the meeting 
held on 4 December 2013 
 
Councillor Seaton introduced the report and in the first instance acknowledged the 
number of consultation responses received, thanking all those involved and the hard 
work undertaken by officers in the development of the document. 
 
Further key points highlighted by Councillor Seaton included the substantial number of 
consultation responses received in relation to the Children’s Centres and St Georges 
Hydrotherapy Pool; the reduction in grant by nearly £44m in 2015/16; evidence of 
investment in the city including Peterborough having one of the lowest shop vacancy 
rates in the country; GSCE results in Peterborough being the sixth most improved in 
the county; an independent report of UK cities highlighted that Peterborough was the 
UKs fastest growing city and had the second highest private sector employment growth 
and the fifth highest housing stock growth; Peterborough had the sixth lowest council 
tax in the country and it was proposed to freeze the level for the next two years.  
 
In summarising, Councillor Seaton advised that the budget proposed struck the right 
balance between supporting vulnerable people and minimising the impact on services, 
whilst also meeting the financial challenges and placing the Council on a sound 
financial footing moving forward and improving the city for all residents. 
 
Councillor Seaton further added that he had an update on the Hydrotherapy pool. 
Following feedback from the Disability Forum and the recent petition received, Cabinet 
remained committed to trying to find a future solution for the users of St Georges 
Hydrotherapy Pool.  

8



 

 
It remained unclear as to whether there was a long term future for the pool given the 
high levels of maintenance and repair that the site required, however all avenues would 
be explored and the Council would continue to keep the facility open beyond April, 
whilst working with others to consider future options. It was advised that a number of 
Councillors had pledged Community Leadership Fund money in order to keep the pool 
open for around another three months.  
 
The Council would work with the user group and other interested parties to try and find 
alternative funding for the remainder of the year, including support from Health and 
other funding and grants which may be available. The search for funds would also 
identify whether such funding could be maintained into a second year, again 
maintaining the services whilst longer term options were considered.  
 
Cabinet was therefore asked to agree in principle to keep the Hydrotherapy Pool open 
for a maximum of two years subject to necessary income and funds being raised to 
fund the service, including discussions with the Health and Wellbeing Board, and the 
facility not requiring capital investment during that period. Furthermore, Cabinet was 
requested to approve the Budget and MTFS in the report, as amended by the 
recommendations in the ‘Funding Peterborough’s Future Growth’ report as the basis 
for consideration by Council on 5 March 2014. 
 
Cabinet debated the report and comments and responses to queries included: 
 

• It was requested that there be an amendment to the proposal in respect of the 
Hydrotherapy Pool to reflect that financial support from the NHS would be 
required; 

• The Youth Council was to be acknowledged for their involvement and questions 
at one of the consultation events; 

• It was requested that ‘Recreation’ be added to the priority for ‘supporting the 
city’s culture trust Vivacity to continue to deliver arts and culture and recreation’. 
This would encompass the sport aspect, which would ultimately support the 
healthy option, supporting the preventative agenda; 

• The investment that the Council continued to make in Children’s Services was 
to be aknowledged and the extremely sensitive and efficient way in which the 
recent cases, as heard at the Old Bailey, had been dealt with; 

• The essential frontline services, both in Children’s Services and Adult Social 
Care, which continued to be funded, unquestioned; 

• There had been no proposals put forward in Children’s Services or Adult Social 
Care that would in any way put people at risk; and 

• The feedback from the External Auditors had been positive and complimentary 
particularly in relation to the standard of the working papers. 

 
Following debate, the Leader wished for it to be put on record that, in relation to the 
recent cases heard at the Old Bailey, the Cabinet thanked all of the staff members who 
had been involved in bringing the issues to light, dealing with them so efficiently and 
protecting the lives of the young girls involved.  
 
Cabinet considered the report and RESOLVED to: 
 
1. Have regard to the consultation feedback received to date and statutory advice 

detailed in the report when determining the budget recommendations, noting that 
consultation remained open and further update would be provided at the Cabinet 
meeting and to the council meeting; 
 

2. Agree that the budget proposals contained in the report to Cabinet on 3 February, 
updated for items in the current report and as amended by the recommendations 

9



 

approved within the ‘Funding Peterborough’s Future Growth report, be 
approved and recommended to Council on 5 March 2014, namely: 
 

a) The revenue budget for 2014/15 and the medium term financial strategy to 
2023/24, set in the context of the sustainable community strategy; 

b) The capital programme for 2014/15 to 2023/24, and associated capital 
strategy, treasury management strategy and asset management plan; 

c) The council tax freeze in 2014/15 and 2015/16 with indicative increases for 
planning purposes of 2% for 2016/17 to 2023/24; 

d) The proposals for setting fees and charges for 2014/15 

e) The reserves position including the current budget monitoring forecast; 

and that a complete MTFS document would be presented to Council. 
 

3. Note the approved and submitted declaration of the surplus on the Collection Fund 
with regards to business rates for 2013/14 and the business rates forecast for 
2014/15; 
 

4. Approve the discretionary retail relief scheme to businesses and the discretionary 
reoccupation relief scheme for 2014/15; 
 

5. Have regard for the continuing uncertainty of national public finances, the impact 
that dwelling and business growth locally will have on future funding arrangements; 
and 
 

6. Recognise the challenge to close a significant forecast gap of £18m in 2015/16 and 
also the further gaps in later years. 
 

Cabinet FURTHER RESOLVED to agree, in principle, to keep the Hydrotherapy pool 
open for a maximum of two years, subject to: 
 
1. The necessary income and funds being raised to fund the service, including 

financial support from the NHS; and 

2. The facility not requiring capital investment during that period. 
 

 REASONS FOR THE DECISION 
 

 i)   The Council must set a lawful and balanced budget; 

ii)  The Council is required to set a Council Tax for 2014/15 within statutory prescribed 
timescales and in accordance with the local referendum requirements contained 
within the Localism Act 2011; and 

iii) Before setting the level of Council Tax, the Council must have agreed a balanced 
budget. 

 
 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 

Alternative levels of Council Tax increase and areas for growth/savings could be 
considered but this must be seen in the context of the Sustainable Community 
Strategy and other constraints, along with the loss of council tax freeze grant that any 
increase would lead to. 

 
 
               Chairman 

10.00am - 10.55am 

10



 

AB 
 

MINUTES OF EXTRAORDINARY CABINET MEETING HELD  
26 FEBRUARY 2014 

 
 
PRESENT 
 
Cabinet Members: Councillor Cereste (Chairman), Councillor Holdich, Councillor Elsey, 
Councillor Fitzgerald, Councillor North and Councillor Seaton. 
 
Cabinet Advisers:  Councillor Casey, Councillor Goodwin and Councillor Todd. 
 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Scott, Councillor Walsh and 
Councillor Dalton. 

 
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
 There were no declarations of interest. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS FROM FULL COUNCIL (IF ANY) 
 
3. CALL-IN REFERRAL FROM: 
 
 CREATING OPPORTUNITIES AND TACKLING INEQUALITIES SCRUTINY 

COMMITTEE OF 17 FEBRUARY 2014 – EXECUTIVE DECISION – THE FUTURE 
DIRECTION OF CHILDREN’S CENTRES DELIVERY FEB14/CAB/09 

 
Cabinet received a report which requested it to consider any recommendations arising 
from the meeting of Full Council, held immediately before the meeting of Cabinet. 
 
On 3 February 2014, the Cabinet made an executive decision relating to the Future 
Direction of Children’s Centres Delivery and on 5 February 2014, a request to call-in 
this decision was received. 

 
On 17 February 2014, the call-in request was considered by the Creating Opportunities 
and Tackling Inequalities Scrutiny Committee and the call-in was upheld. It was agreed 
that the decision be referred to a meeting of Full Council, 26 February 2014, for 
consideration and debate. 
 
Full Council had subsequently considered and debated the request to call-in, and taken 
into account all relevant advice.  The outcome of the meeting was: 
 
i) To not agree to the request to call-in, when the decision shall take effect immediately. 
 
It was therefore advised that there were no recommendations for Cabinet to consider. 
That being the case, the meeting was concluded with no further action to be taken, or 
decisions to record. 

  
 
               Chairman 

9.00pm - 9.02pm 

11



12

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 

 
CABINET 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM No. 4 

24 MARCH 2014 PUBLIC REPORT 

 

Cabinet Member(s) responsible: Councillor Marco Cereste, Leader of the Council and Cabinet 
Member for Growth, Strategic Planning, Housing and Economic 
Development 

Cllr David Seaton – Cabinet Member for Resources 

Contact Officer(s): John Harrison, Executive Director of Resources Tel. 01733 
452520 

 

Call-in Referral from Sustainable Growth and Environment Capital Scrutiny Committee of 
12 March 2014 – Executive Decision – Update on Proposed Ground Mounted and Wind 
Developments at Newborough, Morris Fen and America Farm – FEB14/CAB/16 
 

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S 
FROM : Sustainable Growth and Environment Capital 
Scrutiny Committee  

Deadline date : n/a 

 
It is recommended that Cabinet considers the recommendations arising from the Sustainable Growth 
and Environment Capital Scrutiny meeting of 12 March 2014, held to consider the call-in regarding 
the Executive Decision – Update on Proposed Ground Mounted and Wind Developments at 
Newborough, Morris Fen and America Farm – FEB14/CAB/16.  
 

 
1. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT 
 
1.1  This report requests that Cabinet considers the recommendations arising from the 

Sustainable Growth and Environment Capital Scrutiny Committee, held 12 March 2014. 
 
2.       BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 On 24 February 2014, the Cabinet made an executive decision relating to the Proposed 

Ground Mounted and Wind Developments at Newborough, Morris Fen and America Farm. 
 
2.2 On 26 February 2014, a request to call-in this decision was received, signed by Councillor 

David Harrington, Councillor David Sanders and Councillor Ed Murphy. 
 
2.3 On 12 March 2014, the call-in request was considered by the Sustainable Growth and 

Environment Capital Scrutiny Committee and the call-in was upheld.  
 
2.4 The minutes of the meeting are not yet available. The resolution however reads as follows: 
 
 ‘The decision is to be referred back to the Cabinet with the following recommendations: 
 

1.  That the Wind and Solar Member Working Group consider the Cabinet’s decision when 
it meets on the 18th March 2014 and shall report on that decision and the issues raised 
by the Call-In and discussed at this meeting of the Scrutiny Committee, including 
alternative options; and 

 
2. That the Cabinet shall not act on the decision made by it on 24th February 2014 until it 

has received and considered the report of the Wind and Solar Member Working Group 

13



 
 

and the comments of the Sustainable Growth and Environment Capital Scrutiny 
Committee on that report’. 

 
2.5  The minutes of the Scrutiny Committee will also show that the Chair stated that he will call 

an extraordinary meeting of the Committee, if necessary, so as to receive the Working 
Group’s report as soon as is reasonably practicable. 

 
2.6 The call-in request form and the response to the call-in report are attached at Appendix A 

to this report.  The full agenda pack for the Sustainable Growth and Environment Capital 
Scrutiny Committee can be viewed at the following link:  
http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=535&MId=3290&Ver=4 

 
3. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

3.1 As per the Council’s Constitution, Part 4, Section 8 – Scrutiny Rules of Procedure, 
Paragraph 13.7 ‘if having considered the request for call-in of the decision, the Scrutiny 
Committee or Scrutiny Commission is still concerned about it, then it may refer it back to 
the decision making person or body for reconsideration, setting out in writing the nature of 
its concerns, or it may refer the matter to full Council’.  

 
3.2 The Scrutiny Procedure Rules continue that ‘if referred back to the decision taker, they shall 

then reconsider within a further ten working days, amending the decision or note, before 
adopting a final decision. Once a decision has been reconsidered by the decision taker if 
may not be the subject of a further call-in’. 

 
4.        IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 Any implications are contained within the Cabinet report, dated 24 February 2014. This can 

be viewed at the following link:  
 http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=116&MId=3278&Ver=4 
 
5. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
  
5.1  None. 
 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

14



���������	
����������

���������	
�	��������� ���
�
���� ����� ����� ��� ����������  !�� ��"!��� �#�  �� �� ��� $�� �������� ���  !#� ������!#�

���������!����������!#����������� !��������������!����������%&��������������'����!�(�

'��)�!"�� #����������������!����!"��������������������	
�������
�������	����������*��&�� ���
�������!������&������������������ )������� ' ����� ������� ����!����������!�����' #*�
�

�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������	�����
���
���  ������!��"��#���$%��&'	�������������������
������������������
�����������������
��������������������������(����)����
���
�
���!��"����� � ����� ���
�������
�
����
!��
%�������������������	� 	����������������������������
�����������������������
���
����������
����
������
������������������������������(����)����
���
�
���!�

+������!�� )��,� � ��!���

+ ������������ ���!�����������!,� -.������ �#�-/0.�

��������+������!�� ������!�,� ��� ����!�&��������1���!�����!���� !��$�!��

+�2������!��� ����'�����"�3����������!� !�������� �

� ���4��	50.6��5607�

+ ���+������!�� ������!,� -7������ �#�-/0.�

�

�
�	������������������ ��)�'�����

�� ��!� �������

�

��� ������	���	������	������	����������	��� �

��� ������	���	�����	��	����	�����	�������������������������� �

 �� ������	�����!������� ��������	������������������������	���������������
"	�����#��"	��������	����

�

$�� ������	���	����	���	��	������������	���		��������	�%�����������	������
&���������	������"	�����#��"	��������	���

8�

� '�� ���	�� $(� ������� ����� ������ ��������� �������� 	�� &������ ��� ���� ������	������� ���� �	��
�	��	���(��������	������	�)�

*�+� ,������������� �	������ ���� ��������
��� ���(� ����� ���	������
�	������(��	����������
�����	��������������

8�

*�+� ��������������������	������������-������������������������
�	����	������������	���

�

*�+� .���� ���	���� 	�� ���� ���
���� ������(� �	��� ��� ������� ����
��������(��������	����������
������������

8�

*�+� &����	����	������	�����������������������	�������������� �

*�+� !�����	�������������������	��	�����	
���������������� �

*�+� /	��	���	��������	������������������ 8�

*�+� 0�����������������	���������	������	����������������	���� �

*�+� 1�� ���	������� �	� ����� ������	��� ���� ��� ������� �	� ��
��
���	����	�������

�

*�+� .�������	�������	�����	������
�����	��	��������

�

�

APPENDIX A

15



���������	
����������

+�� ������� ��!9�:������ ����!������������	��
�����������������������������������
���		�
���
���������������������
��������	�
������������������������

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

� � ���9��� ������!�:� ��"! ����� + ���

0*� �����+�; ���!"��!� � -7�����-/0.�

-*� �����+�� !����� � -7�����-/0.�

(*� �����	������#� � -7�����-/0.�

�

�

�

16



���������	
����������

;���&������;	����������	
�	������������5	����&�		+�5<�;	��;�	��

	8	���=	�9���;��6;	���	&�	�	���=	:�

�

+ �������������2��,� -7������ �#�-/0.�

����������������#�9! ��:,� & ���! ������

$ ��� ����!���>����������2���'����!�

������ ���?�
<	���������� �����3���@���� !���!������ �����3��!��� ��

 !��� ����������A�������'�����������

�

�

���������>������������"!��� ���� ���-�

����������� !#�������!#�

���������!����������!#����������?�

<	���������� �����3���@���� !���!������ �����3��!��� ��

 !��� ����������A�������'�����������

�

���������,23�"4��

��� '�� ���� 
����	�� ���� ������	�%����(����� ���� ������	�������	�� ��������� 	� �������� ������
�����(���������	(������
�
���

�

�

�

��� '������
����	������"�������	������5�������"	�������(��������������	��������	��������	��
�����������������������������	�����	������
���������	�����%��(���������	(������
�
�
�	�
�
�

.	�����	�����������������5�������
"	������	�6"	��������

5����������� 2	���� ���� 3�
�	������ "������� 5�������
"	��������

������	�5�������
"	������	�6"	���������	��	������
�-������	�����%���

���0�������$�

,������ 	�� ���� 5�������
"	������	�6"	�������#��
�	��������	���

�
�
�
�
�

'����������(�������������	�%��������
�	���	������������	���������������
������
�

������	�%����� �����

5�����������������	��	������
�	���������"���%����-������	���
�

5��������
�
�
�����*�����������+�
�

�����

�

17



����������	
�����
���
	������	��

�������
��������
������		




������
����
���


� 
�����
 !�"




�#$%&'
��(�)�





��(�)�
�*
�+�
	,�'#�&-�
�&)�'��).
��/�#)'�/





































�����'�
**&'�)0/1
2
3�+�
��))&/��.
	,�'#�&-�
�&)�'��).
��/�#)'�/�
�����'�
����&%/
2
!�455
"6 578�



�	����	
�
����9��
:
	;	�����	
�	�����
2
�����	
�
����	�

�����
����	�
���
����
�	�	���	���
��
�	������.
�����

:	�
���
��	����
:���
2
:	��"<���<�=



��
 �����	




���� ������	�
���
���������
	����
�	���
���
�����������	���������������������������	�������
�

���������
���	
�
�����	
�����
�������������������
�������� �!"
	
���#��
		���$���
����%��	�&��$�	��'$( �)*�%+*�,-����



 �
 �	���	�������

�

.���
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
.�.�

��������
������&
�����	�����	���
����
����������������������������/����
�&�����������
���	���"0�&�
1�
�
.����� � ���	���		���
�� ������������������ 
� ������������2
��	�!
	/�����	
����������
���3�
��	&��.4�)�!��&��������	��
	���
������������&
���������������������������5�����
�
.���.�&
�����	��
��
��������
	�
��������������2
��	�!
	/�����	
���"6���"�����
�
���������"�����������
��&���
�������&���
�������"6���"����
��.)�$�"	��	6���������	���
����&
�����	������!
	/�����	
���	��
	���
�

5�
 ���>�
�
��	
����������	
��������
�����	��


�

7��� �����	
0�&�����
	��������	6�
������
��&��8��(���	
����������������"��
���"6��	
��&����
9�	�������	�68��	
�����������
��	���!�"����&��
�
�����������	
�
���������
������!����
��:���������	�6�
�������!�������"����&������	
�����������&
�����6�&
�&�	���!�����
&
�	�"��������������&���	���&�
��
������
��&��8��&�	"
���

�	����
�
;�������
�#�������	�6�����	����&���"���
���
�&	��������!������������&����
�	&��
��	�������

�����
��&������!���������
�&�
�������
��&��8�������������������	
�&�����"���6�
�&
������
�������	
����
��
���	
���������	��&�����������������	��$����&����2	���6����	
����"6�$����
�
��&��������	&��.4�7���&�����������&
�������	����"6�������	
�
������;������&�������
�
�
��	
&���#��������"���������&����
	�&���������	��6��	��!����!
	�����
�
�����	
0�&�!��������	����������&�����
����
��	���!�"����
!�	�!��&��&���"�������"6����
�
��&���
��������	�����"����������������	�����&	�&�6��	�&��	�����������&�	�������	�6��	�&��
������
���
�

"�
 ���>�����

�

)��� <�� .)� $�"	��	6� .4�)� ��"���� &
�����	��� ��� ��"��&� ���
	� ������� =������ 
�� �	
�
����
�	
���� �
����� ���� ����� $�	��� �� %��	�&�� $�	�#� �
		��� $��� ����  �!"
	
���>� '=���
���
	>-��
�

18



������&���
��
�� �����"���� ����"����&���������"6������;���������$
	�������.,�$�"	��	6�
.4�)��?���������	����
&������



6�



6��


>	�
����	�



�	����	
�
����
��
�	?�	��




�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

%��
�����������������������
����
��������	�#�����
�����������	
��������	��
�����%��	�&��
$�	���	
�
����� ��	�� �����"������ ��� ������	�"��������&������ ����	���	������"6� ��������
����2
��	�!
	/�����	
����������������	���
����
	���������;�������������	���
��������������

��!�6��������	���
�����
�"��&����������	�����
��"��
!1�
�
���/��
�@




�+�)�
+�/
$���
�
/&��&*&'���
'+����
��
�+�
*&���'&�%
()�A�'�&��/
$��B���
'��/&��)��&��

�*
�+�
*&���'&�%
(�/&�&��
&�
��'��$�)
��
�')#�&�C
���
�+�
��$&���
��(�)�
�*
 "
:�$)#�)C�


�+�)�
B�/
��
�,(%����&��
*�)
�+��
'+����
���
��)�
&�(�)����%CD
��
�((�)�#�&�C
*�)
�+�

�&��
���
��%�)
B�)E&��
�)�#(.
���
�+�)�*�)�
�+�
(#$%&'.
��
�,(%�)�
�+��
'+����
�)
��
$�

�&-��
��
�((�)�#�&�C
��
'��/&��)
�%%
�%��)���&-�/
0�)�&'%�
��
0 1
0�11�



��/(��/�
��
���/��
�@

�

�� ����&�������
���������&�����	
0�&�
���!�	������6��:��������������	��
	��$
	��:�����1�
�
���������	�
���������� �����	��������	�� ��	�����	��� �������� ���������������	�����	���
��������
��������������	���	�	���	���� �����	��������	������	������������	�	�	���	�	����	������
��������	����������������������������������������	�	�	�����!����	�	�"	���#�$����
�����%�&�
�
'�(����
�	��������������	�"		����%����������	���	��������	�������	��	�������
��	������	�)�"���	��
'�*	��������������	�)��������������������������+,�##���	��-.��������	�/�
'�*	����������01-�+����������/����	�"��	��������	��������)�"	����������	�
'�*	���������������	�������������	��������
�������
�����	������
'�2���	������	����3���	������	��	����#��4�5��	�)�
'�6������������
������)�2		����7������	����,5##�4�-.��	���������	8����	������
��	����	���	�"��	���������	�	������	�������������
'�6��	��	���6�	�	�����	�����	���	������������������������	����9.:2����	��������	��
+%	����	����	���	��������$;<������55</�
'�*	���������*0
�����	���	����*96������	��������	����	����	�	�
'�*	���������99 ���	8���������	�������

��	�����%���	���	�����	���	�����
'�=����	��*96�����	��	������	��	�	���-��������	���	��5�)	���*96�	������	�>�
'�2���	������	������	��	���	��")���	�
����������������������������������	��	��
��	��?(�		@�"���	������	���	���������A�

��

�� ���� (:	�
	����	6� 2&	���6� �
������
�� �
	� ��	��� �
��������� ������� ����� 
�� �,�
��&��"�	� .4�7� ���� �
� ��/� �������� ���� 2
��	��
	/�����	
��� 
� &
�����	� ��� �	
����
�
����� !���� ���� �
��	� �	
�
����� ��	��	� ��� ��� ���
	� ���� ����6� ���	������ ���� 
�� ���
�����&����������������������;������������	�!���	���		����	�����
���"������

�
���/��
 @




�C
*�&%#)�
��
)�*�)
'��/&��)��&��
�*
�+�
*&���'&�%
(�/&�&��
��
�+�
�&��
���
��%�)
��)E&��

�)�#(
()&�)
��
�+�
��$&���
����&��D
�+�
��$&���
+�/
*�&%��
��
*�%%�B
()�'��#)�/
'�))�'�%C

���
$�
*�&)
0�)�&'%�
��
0 1
0$1�



�+�)�
&/
�
/�)&�#/
'��'�)�
�$�#�
�+�
�)&�
'����'�&��
��
���)&'�
:�)�
���
F5�
+�/
$���

/��
 �/&��
 ��
 ����
 ��C
 '���&����'C
 �)&/&��
 $#�
 ��
 �,(%����&��
 +�/
 $���
 �&-��
 �$�#�

B+��+�)
�+&/
&/
��
�(()�()&���
���#��
*�)
�+�
)&/E/
�)�#��
�+�
�)&�
'����'�&���

�+�)�
&/


19



�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
=�

















�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

��
A#/�&*&'��&��
*�)
�+&/
*&�#)�
���
��
�((�)�#�&�C
+�/
$���
�&-��
��
�+�
B�)E&��
�)�#(
��

�,��&��
�+&/�



��/(��/�
��
���/��
 @




�� �	
��	��	
&���	��������"���� �
��
!������� ���&���� ��� ����
��&��� ���� ������� 
� �
��
!�
�	
��	��	
&���	�������"�����	������
�"���������
���

�

�� ���� �������� &
�� 
�� ��� �	��� &
���&�
�� ���� "���� "����� ��
�� �	
�����
���� ����&��
	�&�������	
��%�&
���

�

�� �������
	�	�&
����������������	��/1�
�
�����5�B�  �	�����7���&�*�����
�
�����5�B��A�  � ����� ��� �� ������ ����A�� �������� ���"����)� �� �	����� 7���� ��� �����	�� ��	�����)�

������ ��	� ����� ��� ��	� ����� ��	������ 
������ ����	��)� ���� �����	�� ,$��%����� ���
�		�	�����"	��������	��A�

�

�� %����	���6��:���������"
��#����(:	�
	����	6�2&	���6��
������
���
	���	����
���������
������� ����� 
�� �,� ��&��"�	� .4�7� ���� �
� ��/� �������� ���� 2
��	��
	/���� �	
��� 
�
&
�����	���������&���������&��
�����		
�����������	���&
���&�
�����

�
���/��
5@




�+�)�
+�/
$���
�
/&��&*&'���
'+����
��
�+�
G#�%&�C
�*
�+�
%���
�/
/��
�#�
&�
�+�
��$&���

��(�)�
0*)��
�)���
�
���
 
��
5�1�

�+�
(#$%&'.
&�
(�)�&'#%�)
�+�
������
*�)��)/.
B�)�
���

��%�
 �*
 �+&/
 #��&%
 �+�
 )�(�)�
 B�/
 &//#���
 
 �+&/
 +�/
 �+�
 (�����&�%
 ��
 &�(�'�
 �+�
 ������

*�)��)/
���
 �+�
��#�'&%H/
�B�
 *)��+�%�
 &���)�/�
���
��
'��/&��)��&��
B�/
�&-��
�/
 ��

�+�
'����)'&�%
 &�(�'�
 �+��
 �+&/
 &�*�)���&��
'�#%�
+�-�D
 &���
��-�%�(&��
 �+�
 %����
 
�+�

��$&���
+�/
�+�)�*�)�
*�&%��
��
��E�
&���
�''�#��
�%%
)�%�-���
�����)/
$�*�)�
��E&��
�+�&)

��'&/&��
0�)�&'%�
��
0 1
0'11�



��/(��/�
��
���/��
5@




�� �������������������������������������������
��!������	����������.������������&
		�&�?�
����������������
�����&�		���6�&���
	���������	������

�� ��	��	����)�7�7�
��������
	������������&�����������������6�
�����������	
���	������
�
�	����7����������
���	��
	�	�������
���6�
�%��	�&��$�	�������
���6�
��	��������

�� ���� �:������ ����� 
�� %��	�&�� $�	�� ��� ��&����� ��� ����� �  
� 
��	� ��	��	� ���	���� �	��
����&�����
����%��	�&��$�	���

��
�	;�
��	��
����	�
��
�����	�


�
�	�
	� 
� ���� 	��
	�"������	���	����
��&���
	�2��
�������	
�
���� ������!���!������� 
��
�
��������������&���
��
����"���� 
����"���������	�
�"�����&���������������"6� ��������
����2
��	�!
	/�����	
����
�
�����!���	�0�&����
�
���� ��"���� "�������� ��� "�&����� 
�� ��� ����� �	
����� ���	�� 
�� ��� �	
�
����� ��� ��	�� ���
"���������������	�"��������&����������	���	������"6�������������2
��	�!
	/�����	
����;�
������� �
!���������� !����	� &
������ ���/�� 
� &���� ��� ��� ���	� 
	� �
� ��� �� !����
����	�/�� ���� &
�	��� 
�� �&�
��� ����� ��� ��� ����� !��� ��� 
�&
��� 	�������� "6� ��� ����?���
��������
�



20



�
4�
 �����������





@���  

��!������&��
������&���	���	��
��
�����	��
	�������������&��
���&
���������	���




8�
 ����������
���
�	;�
��	��




3��� ;�����	
�
�������������	�"��	���		���
����!
	/�����	
����

 

� 

7�
 ���>�����
����	���




A���  
���


�!�




���	����	�

�

�4���  
���
�

�
� �
�
�
�
�
�
�

21



22

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
CABINET 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM No. 5 

24 MARCH 2014 PUBLIC REPORT 

 

Cabinet Member(s) responsible: Cllr Nigel North - Cabinet Member for Environment Capital and 
Neighbourhoods 

Contact Officer(s): Richard Kay– Group Manager - Strategic Planning, 
Housing and Environment  

Charlotte Palmer – Climate Change Manager  

Tel. 453475  

 

Tel. 453538 

 

Environment Capital Action Plan (ECAP) 
 

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S 

FROM : Simon Machen – Director of Growth and 
Regeneration  

Deadline date : 24 March 2014 
 

 
1. That Cabinet recommends the Environment Capital Action Plan to Council for approval. 

 

 
1. ORIGIN OF REPORT 
 

1.1 The Environment Capital Action Plan (ECAP) has been prepared to outline how the city 

intends to deliver against the ‘Creating the UK’s Environment Capital’ strategic priority.   

 

1.2 Cabinet will recall that at its meeting of 16 December 2013, a draft ECAP was approved for 

the purposes of consultation. Such consultation has taken place (details in this report) and 

a revised ECAP is being brought back to Cabinet for approval prior to consideration by 

Council. 

 

2. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT 
 

2.1 The purpose of this report is to seek support for the ECAP by Cabinet and, if such support 

is forthcoming, for Cabinet to recommend the ECAP to Council for adoption. 

 

2.2 This report is for Cabinet to consider under its Terms of Reference No 3.2.1 “to take 

responsibility of the delivery of all strategic Executive functions within the Council’s Major 

Policy and Budget Framework and lead the Council’s overall improvement programmes to 

deliver excellent services”. 

 

3. TIMESCALE  
 

Is this a Major Policy 
Item/Statutory Plan? 

No If Yes, date for relevant 
Cabinet Meeting 

 

 

4. ENVIRONMENT CAPITAL ACTION PLAN 

 

Introduction 

4.1 The Environment Capital Action Plan (ECAP) will provide, for the first time, a clear vision for 

how the ‘Creating the UK’s Environment Capital’ strategic priority will be delivered. Put 

23



simply, Environment Capital means changing the way we do things to live within the 

resources of the planet we have. If everyone on Earth lived as the average Peterborian, 

British or European citizen does, we would need three planets’ worth of resources to 

sustain us. This means, on average, each of us is using too much of the world’s resources 

to produce the food we eat, treat the waste we produce, and generate the energy we use. 

The plan is broken down into ten different areas each of which include a vision of a 

sustainable Peterborough where people lead prosperous, happy, healthy lives within their 

fair share of the earth's resources. 

 Structure of the ECAP  

4.2 The ECAP, as amended following consultation, is attached. As Cabinet will recall from its 

consideration of the draft ECAP it is intentionally short, easy to read and easy to engage 

with. It is hoped that everyone will understand, sympathise with and support at least one of 

the themes, no matter the person’s background, age, status, economic situation or beliefs.  

4.3 To be clear, this is not an action plan focussing on the traditional ‘green agenda’. It is an 

action plan to foster healthier and happier lives, to support economic prosperity and security 

for residents and the city, and to help generate stronger, cohesive, supportive communities. 

And in achieving all this, it will also help improve our local environment and contribute to 

minimising, and mitigating against the effects of, climate change. 

4.4 The plan is a city wide document (i.e. not just the Council) and has been developed with 

stakeholders from key organisations across the City. The plan is broken down into ten 

areas and comprises local and national context, interim targets to 2016 and a vision to 

2050. 

• 2013-2016 targets – these targets are, in the vast majority of cases, those that exist 

already in the City. If they are additional they focus on research which we aim to 

deliver by working with partners including local and national universities. Therefore 

these targets do not require additional resource, but do, for the first time, bring 

together all the positive action being done in Peterborough.  

• 2050 targets – these are designed to be truly visionary. At this stage we do not 

know if this target is possible but after adoption of the plan effort will focus on 

undertaking more in depth research into each theme area establishing the trajectory 

and revising the vision if necessary.  

4.5 The ECAP is intended to be a true reflection of what stakeholders are able to commit to 

within existing resources and allows us to understand what these resources are. Crucially, 

whilst the ECAP is being led and developed by the Council the plan will be a document that 

is owned by the City with the aim of delivering this shared priority. 

 Why is a plan needed? 

4.6 Our aspiration in the Sustainable Communities Strategy (SCS) to create the UK’s 

Environment Capital is difficult for people across the City to understand in terms of goals 

and targets. Since its adoption in 1998 a number of initatives have taken place to drive the 

aspiration forward but these have never been brought together holistically to enable 

progress to be monitored and action scrutinised.  

4.7 This plan aims to make the SCS aspiration tangible, demonstrating how the actions make 

economic sense, make us more resilient to change and promote health and wellbeing, all 

whilst improving the local environment.  

24



   Fit within the Council’s policy framework: 

4.8 In 2010 the Council adopted the ‘Home of Environment Capital Major Policy’ which 

committed the organisation to continually monitor and improve its performance across a 

number of environmental areas. The policy can be viewed here: 

http://www.peterborough.gov.uk/pdf/env-EC-majorpolicy.pdf. However, since the adoption 

of this policy there has been significant progress and refinement in delivering this strategic 

priority, and Environment Capital is increasingly being considered within the wider context 

(e.g. economy, social issues, cohesion) in which its sits. As such the ECAP demonstrates 

how the City will deliver against this priority.  

 Next steps 

4.9 Should Council decide to approve the ECAP subsequent action will focus on two key 

areas. The first will include monitoring progress which will be delivered by gathering 

quarterly performance data and using this to produce an annual monitoring report which 

will be made publically available. The second action will focus on continuing to work with 

organisations across the City to identify further targets that can be included in the plan 

going forward.  

4.10 However, it should also be noted that the ECAP is a starting point. The challenge after 

adoption (and future reviews) will be to address how we collectively, as a City, fill the gap 

between 2016 and the 2050 vision.   

 

5. CONSULTATION 
 

5.1 A consultation took place on the draft ECAP between 15 January and 14 February 2014. 

Broadly speaking, the ECAP was well supported by those who commented on it. A 

summary of the comments received and proposed alterations arising as a result of 

comments received can be found at Appendix A.  

 

5.2 In short, however, having considered carefully the comments received, there appears no 

reason to fundamentally amend the approach, vision and targets as were set out in the 

draft ECAP. Instead, just a limited number of refinements to the ECAP have been made. 

 

6. ANTICIPATED OUTCOMES 

 

6.1 It is anticipated that Cabinet will recommend the Environment Capital Action Plan to 

Council for adoption. 

 

7. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

7.1 Cabinet is recommended to approve the ECAP. This is because the plan will help deliver 

the city’s Environment Capital priority by providing clear strategic direction for the priority 

whilst creating, for the first time, a set of targets with which the progress of this priority will 

be measured.  

 

8. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 

8.1 The alternative option of not producing a plan would mean that there would be no clear 

vision and targets associated with the Environment Capital priority making progress difficult 

to monitor and the effective allocation of resources difficult. Therefore the alternative option 

of not producing the ECAP was rejected.  

 

25



9. IMPLICATIONS 

 

9.1 Legal Implications - None. 

 

9.2 Financial Implications - There are no immediate financial implications on the city council. 

Where applicable, all targets contained within the plan are currently planned to be achieved 

within existing resources. 

 

10.  BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 

  

N/A  

26



�����������	�
��������������������������������������������������������������������������

�������������

���������	��
��
�
����
���	�������
���	���
���	��
����
����
�����
�������
����
 �������
���
����


��������
 !��"
#����
���
��
���
�
�����
���
����
���
�	��
��
��	��
��
��
�	��
����
��������"
$�


	��	�	����
���������
����
����	���"


#��
����
�
��	�
������
	�
��
����	��
�
�������
�
����
���
��	�"
#�	�
������
����
���
������	��
�����


��	��
 ����%
 ���
 ������
 	�
 ��	��
 ��
 �������
 ���
 ����
 	��������
 ��
 ��&������
 ����	����
 	�����"


'������%
����
�������
����
���
��������
����	���
����
����
����
���
����
����
����	�����
�����


���
���������
��
����(��
����
����
���������
��
	���
��������
��
����
�����	�"



)�
����
����
���
��������
��
���������
��
����	���
�������
����
	�
��	�
	�
����
	��������
����


���
��	�
	�"
'������%
	
������
����
��
����
��������	����
�	�	����������
����
�	���%
����
������
���


��
����"



�����������

*�
 ���
+����
 !��%
���	���
�	��
����	���
���
	���
����
�
���
����
���
	
����
���
���	�	��
����
�	��


���������
����
����
�����	�
�����
���
����
��
�,��
���	�
 !��"
#��
�������(�
����
�����	��
-���


�����
���	���.
�	��
��
��
�������
���
��
�������	����%
��
�
�	��%
	��
���
(��
�������
 !�,
���
���


 !�!
�	�	��"



������������������������������������������������


#��
���������	��
��(��
��
���	�(
�����������
�����
&����	���
����
�������
��
���	�
����������	�(
�


���
�	��/�
���	�������
���	���
���	���	��
���
��	����
����(�0



 1���


(���


2���
 ��	�
 ����
 1���


����


3��/�


����


'��
�����
���
����
����
����������	�(


�
����������(�/�
	�����	��
��
������
���


45/�
���	�������
���	���6


�!7
 $�7
  $7
 !7
 ,7
 !7



 8����(��


�(���


#���
��


�(���


9�	����


�(���
���


�	��(���


#���
��


�	��(���


8����(��


�	��(���


3��/�


����


#�
����
�:����
��
���
�(���
��
�	��(���


����
���	�(
���	��
��
	������
���
�����


���	�������
	�
�
���
��	��	��
��
���
�	��6


-������
�	��
���
��:
����.


,;7
 ��7
 ,7
 ;7
 $7
 !7


#�
����
�:����
��
���
�(���
��
�	��(���


����
���
�����	�(
���������
����	��
��


���0
<=
���
����������
����
��
�	�	�
���


�����
�
��	����
����(�/6
-������
�	��


���
��:
����.


,!7
 !7
 ��7
  $7
 ,7
 !7





#�	�
�����
�������
����
;�7
�
�����������
���
��
�����
�
�	�
����������
�
���
�	��/�
���	�������


���	���
���	���	��
���
>;7
���
����
���	�(
���	��
��
	������
���
�����
���	�������
���
�
���
��	��	��"



�

�

27



������������������������� ! �"�������

*��
�
���
(������
�	���
����
���
�:�������
	�
���
�
���
�����
�����
���
����
���
�	�	���
���
����


�������	�(
���
���
��
�		����
��
���	���
	�
�����	��"
=�
��������%
��	�
���
	�����	����"
=�
�����
��


���
 �	��
 ��
 ���	���
 	��
 ���	���	��
�
 �	�	�(
�	��	�
 ���
 ���������
�
���
������%
 �	(�		����
 ����(�
 	�


��&�	���
��
�
�����%
���	����
���
	�������	����
�����"




#����� $� � ! � "������ ��� �����

�����


�����������������������������������������%�����������

&���� �����
 ?
 9�
 ���
 ������


��	��	���
 ���
 ����(�


��������	��%
 ���	����
 �����(�


�	(�
 ����(�
 �	�	����
 ���


���������
����(�"


*������
 >$7
�
 �����������
����
 ���	�	��
�	��
 ���
 �	�	��"
 =�


(������
�����������
���
����
���
���(��
���
�������	�(
���
����


�	(�		����
 ����
 �	��
 ��
 ��&�	���
 ��
 ���	���
 ���
 �	�	��%


����	�������
�����	�(
��
	�����	�(
���
�	�	����
�
������	�
���


����	�
��	��	�(�"






����������������'
'������
��
�������
��
����(�
���
����
�


���
�����
��
@���
������
����(�
��
������
������
���
�	�
�
��	�


�����"



��������� (���
 ?
 )�
 �	��


����
���
>!
�	����
�
�����
��
����


��	��
���
���
�	��
�	��
��
���	�	���


��
�����
�����	��%
�	��
��
������


�	��
 �
 ����	�(
 ����
 ����
 �
 	�


�!!"


*������
 >$7
�
 �����������
����
 ���	�	��
�	��
 ���
 �	�	��"
 =�


(������
 �����������
 ����
 ���������
 �����
 ���
 ��	�	��
 �


���	�����
 �������
 ��
 �����
 ������
 ��
 ������
 ������


��������	��"
#��
����
��
	��������
��	������
�������	�(
���


���
��	�	��
��
�	�	�	��
���
�	��
�
����	�(
���
����
����	����"






�������� ��������'
 9�
 �	(�		����
 ����(��
 ��
 ���
 �	�	��
 	�


��������"
 '������%
 ��
 ��	��
 	�
 ���
 ��
 ������
 �������%
 ��


������0





A)�
�	��
����
�	(�
&���	��
�����
���	��������%
���
������
�	��


�
����	�(
�	��
��
����
����
�
	�
�!!
	�
���
�����
����
���
��


�	��
����
���
>!
�	����
�
�����
��
����
��	��"B


)��� *��� ��� (�������
 ?
 �


�������
 �
 �	���	�?�	��%


������	���
 ������
 ��	��
 ���


������
���
��C����
�������"


*������
 ,$7
 �
 �����������
 ����
 ���	�	��
 �	��
 ���
 �	�	��"


��������
����
����	���
�����	�(
��
���
���	��
��
���
�
���(��


��
��������
�����	��"
�������
��������
�������
��
���
����


��
�������
�����������%
�	��	����	��
���
������
��
(����
�����"


=�
 ���	�	��
 ��������
 ����
 ����	���
 ����
 ��((�����


(���	����	��
������
��
	�������
�	��	�
���
�	�	��"





�������� ��������'
 ��
 ��	�
 ���(�
 ���
 ���(��
 �������
 ��


�������	�(
 ���
 �:����	�(
 ���
 �������
 �:	��	�(
 ������
 ��


����������(�
����
�����	�(
���C���"

D�����	�(
���
��������%


���
�	�	��
	�
��������
��
��
����(��
��0





�
 �������
 �
 ���������
 �	�����%
�	���	�?�	��%
 ������	���
 ������


��	��
���
������
���
��C����
�������"






��������� +������
 ?
 ���


(����
 ���������
 ���


�����	�����
 �������
 ���


��������
 ����	���
 �������


�������"


*������
E>7
�
�����������
����
���	�	��
�	��
���
�	�	��"
8���


�����������
�:�������
�
�	��
����
	�
���
�������
����
����
�


���
�����
	�
���
�	�	��
����
��	���
��%
���
���
�	�	��
�������


��
���
���
�		�����
�
	������	�(
���
������	�(
���
���(��"



�

����������������'
#��
�	�	��
	�
��������
��
��
����(��
��


28






���
 ��	��	�(
 �����	���
 ���������
 	�
 ���
 �	��
 �	��
 ��
 ���


�����	�����
�������
���
��������
����	���
�������
�������"


)���� ��� 
��������� ,���
 ?


>!7
 �
 ���
 ��������
 �	��
 ��


��������
 ���
���������
�	��	�


�!!
�	���
�
���
�	��"




*������
 E�7
�
 �����������
����
 ���	�	��
�	��
 ���
 �	�	��"
 =�


(������
 �����
 ����
 ��������
 �����
 ���
 �����
 ����
 ���
 ��


�������
 ��
���
�������
�
(���	�(
 ���
���
���
������
���


����
������
��
��	�	�	��
��
(���
���	�
���
���"






�������� ��������'
 )�
 ������
 ����	�(
 ���
 �	�	��
 �	��
 ��
 �


�������(�%
���
��
��	��
���	���
	�
��
��
��
�������	���
�	�	��
��


����
�������"
9�
����(�
��
���
�	�	��"�

&����(���
 ?
 '��������
�����


�	��
��������
��
 �!�(
���
�!!7


�	��
 ��
 ��������%
 ������
 ��


���������"


*������
E>7
�
�����������
����
���	�	��
�	��
���
�	�	��"
#����


����
����
��������
�����
���
��������
����(��
��
���������


�������	��
 ����	���
 ���
 ����
 ���
 �	�	��
 ���
 ���
 ����
 ��


	�������
�������
����������	�(
�����
���
����	��
�
������	�("






����������������'�
#��
�	�	��
	�
��������
��
��
����(��
��





������
���������
�����
�	��
��������
��
 �!�(
���
������
���


�!!7
�	��
��
��������%
������%
���������
��
���������"



��������� #�������
 ?
 �


�������	��%
����	�
���������
���


�����
 	���
 �	��
 ���
 ;!7
 �
 ���


C�������
�	��
��
F���
��	��	��


*������
 E>7
�
 �����������
����
 ���	�	��
�	��
 ���
 �	�	��"
 =�


(������
�����������
���
����
�����
���
�
�	(�		����
������
�


����
 ��&�	���
 ��
 ���	���
 ��	�
 �	�
 	�����	�(
 	��������
 �����


��������
 ��
 �������	���
 ���
 ����	���%
 ��
 	�������
 �����


�������
���
��������	��
���	���
��
�����
���	�����"





�������� ��������'
 ��������
 �����%
 ���
 ��
 ����(�
 ��
 ���


�	�	��"


�������� ��� -������
 ?
)�
�	��


��
 ����(�	���
 ��
 �
 �	(�
 &���	��


�������
���
���	��(�
����	���	��


�	��
���	��
���	�����"


*������
 > 7
 �
 �����������
 ����
 ���	�	��
 �	��
 ���
 �	�	��"


D����������
���
����
����������(�
���
�
���
��
���
���
��	�


��������	��
���
����
����
����
	�
��&�	���
��
�������
�
�����(


�����
�������
���
�������
���
�������
�
����������"






�������� ��������'
 ��������
 �����%
 ���
 ��
 ����(�
 ��
 ���


�	�	��"


�.����� ��� )���� �������
 ?
 �


�	(�
��	����%
���
�������%
�	������


�������
 �	���
 ��
 ���
 �	(����


����������	��
�
���	���������


���	������
	�
���
45"


*������
 E�7
�
 �����������
����
 ���	�	��
�	��
 ���
 �	�	��"
 =�


(������
 �����
 ���
 ����
 �������
 ����
 ���
 �	�	��
 ���
 ���


�������	�(
���
����
���
����
<�	������
�������/
���
�������"






����������������'
#��
�	�	��
	�
��������
��
��
����(��
��





�
 <�	(�
 ��	����
 G
 ���
 �������/
 �������
 �	���
 ��
 ���
 �	(����


����������	��
�
���	���������
���	������
	�
���
45"


-��������-�������
?
)�
�	��


�	��
 ���(��%
 ������	��%
 ����


��	��	�(
 �	���%
 �	��
 ������


�&���	��
��
���
���	�����"


*������
E!7
�
�����������
����
���	�	��
�	��
���
�	�	��"
8���


�����������
 ���
 ����
 ���
 ����
 �
 (����
 �����
 ������
 ��


	�����������
	���
���
�	�	��
���
����
���
�����
�����	���
�	��	�


	�
 ������
 ��
 ��	���
 ������"
 *����
 ��������
 ���
 ����
 ���


�����
������
��
�������
<'�����
���
)�����	�(/
��
��	(�
�	��


�����
�����
���
���	����
���	��"





29



����������������'
#�
������
���
�	���
�
���
�����
��
<'�����


���
)�����	�(/
���
��
����(�
��
���
�	�	��"
2����
�����
�������


�������
��
���
��	��
�����"


�

����������������������������������� /0�

*��
�
���
(������
�	���
�:�������
	�
���
�
���
�����
�����
���
����
�����
���
�����
��(��	���	���


������	�(
������
���
�	��
���
���
����
���(���
����
���
��
	�������
	�
���
����"
)���
�	��
����	���%


����
�����	��
�
���
����%
��
����
�	��
�����
��(��	���	���
��
��	��
���������
�
���
���	�������


���	���
���	���	��
���
�������
������
���(���
��
	�����	��
	�
�����
����	���
�
���
����"

�

#���������� /0� 
�����������������������������������������%��

���������

&���������



�"� D�����
 �	��
 �����	�
 �* 
 ��	��	���
 ��


$�7"



 "� =�������
 ���
 ������
 �
 ���	������


��(	������
 �	��
 =��������
 	�
 ���


���	�������
���
E>
��
� �"


$"� D�����
 ���
 ���	��
 �* 
 ���
 E" 
 ��
 �";


������"


��� ���
��������
������������
(������
����


�!
 �����
 ��
 �!!!�&�
 ����
 ����
 �����


���	���
��
��	��	���
 ���	�
 ��
 �����
�!7


������
 ����
 ��	��	�(
 ��(����	��


���������"�

*������
;�7
�
�����������
����
���	�	��
�	��
���


���(���"
=�
(������
��������
�������
��
���
����
��


	�������
����(�
�	�	����
	�
��	��	�(�
���
��
���


������������%
����
�
��	��
���
�������
	�������


��
���(���
	�
���
����"






����������������'
8	���
����	���	��
�
���
����
���


����
 �����	�(
 ��
 ���
 ���	��
 �* 
 ��	��	���
 ���


����(��
���
��������
	�
	�
��������
��
������
���


���(��
������	�(��
��0





A$"
D�����
���
���	��
�* 
��	��	���
��
�">
������"B






���������(����

�"� H����	��
 ���
 �����	�/�
 �����


��������	��
 ���
 ���
 �
 ���(��
 ��


������	��"�

 "� D�����
���
������
�
�	��
������(��
��


�!7"


$"� �������
�����	�(
(�	�����
��
�������
�


�����	�����
�	���
����	���"�

*������
>,7
�
�����������
����
���	�	��
�	��
���


���(���"
 D����������
 ��	���
 ��������
 �����
 ���


����
�
����
��
���
�	���
���	���������
����	��


�
 �����
 �������
 ����
 ���
 �
 �	��	����	��
 ���


�������	����
 ��������	��"
 =�
 ���	�	��
 �����������


��	���
��������
�����
���
����
�������
����������


��
��(�	��
)����
 ���
 ���
 ����
 ��
 ����
 ��
 �����


���(���"






����������������'



#��
�	���
����	��
	����
���
����
���������
��
���


��������
���������
��
���
�	�	��"



)�
�������
������	�(
���
������
���(��
�	��
���


������
���(���0


 "
�������
���
<����
 !/
�	����
�
�����
�����	(�


������
���
�	��"


�"
 ��(�	��
)����
 ����
 ���������
 �	��
 ������(��


������
 ����������(�
 ��
 E!7
 �	���
  !�!"
 #�	�


�	(�		����
������	��
�	��
��
��	���	���"


=�
 ���	�	��
��
�������
 ������	�(
 ���
 ��	��
 ���(��


�	��0



30



$"
�������
	���(�����
���	�������
���
�������	��


	����������
 �����
 ��
 ����������(�I�
 ��	��	���


�	����"





)���*������(��������

�"� =�������
���
������
�
�	���
	�
���	�	��


����(�����
���
E;7
��
>�7"


 "� =�������
���
������
�
�����
�������
��


����
�
���
������
��
����������(�
���


>%!!!
��
��%!!!"


12� 8�����
���	�(
��
 	�������
���
������


�
2����
���(�
���
�
��
�"�

*������
>�7
�
�����������
����
���	�	��
�	��
���


���(���"
#�	�
����
�
���
����
����	���
���
�	(����


������
�
���������
�������"
��������
�������


��0


?� ���
 ����
 ��
 ����
 	�����	��
 (����
 ����	�(


��(	���
��
��	��
������
��	���
���
�������


��
 !��G��
��	��
���
�����
�
���(��
��
��


	�������
(�	�(
������"



?� 3�	�	�	��
 �
 ����
 �
 �	��
 	�
 ���	�	��


����(�����
 �����"
 8���
 ��������


��	���
�������
�����
���
����
�
���	���	��


��	�
���(��
��((����



?� #��
����
��
	������
�����
(����(	���
�	���
	�


���
���(��"


?� �
 ������
 ���(��
 ���
 ��((�����
 ��
 9���


����
#����





����������������'



���	�	��
����(�����
�����
��
�	���
����
����
����


���	(�����
 ��
 ���	�
 ��������	��
 ������


���������	��
 	���������%
 �	����
 �	���	�
 ��


(����(�"
 
���	�	��
����(�����
�
 ����
�����
 ��


�����
 ��	��
 ���
 ��	�(
 ����(��
 	�
 �����
 ��


��������
���	�
������
���������	��
 	�������
 	�
���


����
 	��
 �����"
 #��
 ���(��
 �&�����
 ��
>�7
�
 ��$


�	���"
 
 =�
 ������
 ��
 �����
 ����
 �
  7
 	�������
 	�


����	�����
 ��
 ��
 �:�������
 �������(	�(
 ����


����������(�
 	�
 �������
 ��������
�	��	�
 ���	����


������	�(
 ��
 ��	�(
 ���
 ���
 ����
 	�
 ���
 �������"


2����(	���
�	���
���
�������
	�
���
�	�	��"





�����G���
���
�����	�(
���(���0


$"
8�����
���	�(
��
	�������
���
������
�
2����


���(�
��
,"


�"
9���
����
#����
�	��
����	������
��	��
���
&���	��


�
 	��
 ��	�	�	��
 ���
 	������
 ���
 ����	�	���	��
 ���


��(�(�����
�
�	�	����"






���������+�������

�"� #��
 �����	�
 �	��
 ���	���
 �����
 �
 	�
 ���


(���������
�����������
��������"


 "� 3������
 �����	�(
 (�	�����
 ��
 �������


���
���
�
�����	�����
�����	���"


$"� 8���
 ���	�(
 ��
 �������
 �
 �	��
 �	��


�����	�����
 �����
 �����������


��������"


�!!7
 �
 �����������
 ����
 ���	�	��
 �	��
 ���


���(���"
D��������
�������
��
���
����
��
��	��


����
 <�����
 �
 	�
 ���
 (���������
 �����������


��������/
 �������
 ��"
 =�
 ���	�	��
 ���
 ����
 ��


����	���
�((��(���
�:�����	��"






����������������'



31



<J����
�/
���
��
����
��
�	��	�(
����8����	�����


�����������
 	�
 2���������0
 2�	�����
 ��
 ���


���:	���
���������
��
���"(��"��"


���
���(��0


�"� =�
 �����	�(���	��
 ���
 ����������(�
  �7
 �


�����
 �((��(����
 �����
 �	��
 ��
 �����	���
 �


���������
���
��������
�((��(����"


)�������
���������,����

�"� 8���
 ���	�(
 ��
 �����
 ���
 �
 ���	�	�	��


�����
 	���
 �����%
 �����	�����
 ���


�������	��


 "� ���	���
��	������
�	��
������


$"� 3������
 �����	�(
 (�	�����
 ��
 �������


�����
���"


*������
;!7
�
�����������
����
���	�	��
�	��
���


���(���"
��������
�������
��
�������
�����
���


��	�	��
�
�����	�(
(�	�����
��
	�������
�����
���


�������	��"






����������������'
=�
	�
����	�����
����
��	�
�	��
��


���������
 �����(�
 ���
 ���(���
 ����
 ����
 ����


	�������"


9�
����(�
��
���
���(���"


&����(����

�"� =�������
 �����	���
 ��������
 ��


���������
 ��
 ���
 ���������
 ������	�(


������
���
>!
��
;!7"


 "� H�	��
�
���
'��������
������	�(
������"




$"� 8���
���	�(
��
�������
��
���	��
����


��
 ������
 ����	��
 �
 ���?���	�	���


�����
-���"
���?������	�."


*������
;!7
�
�����������
����
���	�	��
�	��
���


���(���"
��������
�������
��
���
�����	��
�:	��	�(


���(��
 ��
 ���	���
 �
 ������	�(
 ����
 �
 ,�7
 ���
 ��


����(�
��
���
���
�
�����	�
��(�
	�
�����
�����"





����������������'
9�
����(�
��
���
���(���"






���������#��������

�"� =�������
���
������
�
���	������
�	��


������
�����
���
$!
	�
� G�$
��
,!"


�2� =�������
���
������
�
���	��
����	�	�(


H	����	�	��
 ���	�	�(
 ���
 ;��
 ��
 �$!!


��������"�

*������
;�7
�
�����������
����
���	�	��
�	��
���


���(���"
 #��
 ��������
 ����	���
 �������
 ��


��������
�����
���
������	�	�	��
�
���
����	���
���


���
 ����
 ��
 	������
 ���(���
 �����	�(
 ��
 	��������


���
�
�	�����
�����	�����
������
�����"






����������������'
#�
	������
���
�����	�(
���(��0


$"
#�
������
�������
�
������
���	���	�(
�������


��
 ������
 	�
 �����
 ���������
 �����
 ����
 ��
 ��


���������"


�����������-�������

�"� =�������
 ���
 ������
 �
 ���	��
 �	�����


�������
 ��
 $7
 ��������
 ���
 �


�����	��
�
 $%;,E"


 "� =�������
 ���
 ������
 �
 ������


������	�(
�������
�����������
��
�!7


����
����
���
�
�����	��
�
�!%!!!"


12� =�������
 ���
 ������
 �
 ������


������	�(
 ����
 ������
 ���
 �!%!!!
 ��


,!%!!!
��
 !�,"�

*������
;!7
�
�����������
����
���	�	��
�	��
���


���(���"
 )�	���
 	�
 (������
 ���
 ��������
 ����


���	�	��
 �����
 ���
 ����
 �������
 �����
 ���


�����	���
�������	��
�
�������
���
���	��(�
���


���
�������
���	�������"






�������� ��������'
 #��
 ����
 	�
 	�������
 ��
 ��
 �


���	��	�
��������
���
��	���
	�
	�
������
����
	�
��


���
�	�����
�����
�����
����
���
	�������
��
��


��������
 �������	��
 ���
 �����
 ����	�("
 '������%


���
�����	�(
����(��
���
��������





�"
 =�������
���
������
�
���	��
 �	�����
�������


��
$7
��������
���
�
�����	��
�
  %;E�"


 "
 =�������
 ���
 ������
 ������	�(
 �������


�����������
 ��
 �!7
 ����
 �����
 �����
 ���
 �


�����	��
�
�!%!!!"


32



�"
  �
 �������
 ���
 ���	��(�
 ����	���
 �	�


2����	����	��
����&������2





�.��������)������������

�"� =�������
 ���
 ������
 �
 C���
 	�
 ���


���������
�������
��
�!7"�

 "� D�����
�	��
�	��
������������
��
�7


��������"


$"� 4��������
 �
 ����	�(
 �����
 ������
 ��


�������	�
 �����
 	�
 ���
 �������
 ���


�����&������
���(��
���������
�	��
���


�	�
 �
 ���	��	�(
 ���
 2���������/�


���(��
��
����	����
���
�������
��
 !�,"
�

*������
 �!!7
 �
 �����������
 ����
 ���	�	��
 �	��


���
���(���"
#��
��������
�������
��
���
����
��


�����
���
�
����	�(
�����
������%
��	��
 	�
�������


	�������
��
�
���(��
	�
���
����"





����������������'
9�
����(�
��
���
���(���"


-��������-��������

�"� =�������
���
������
�
�����������
 	�


�����
���
����	���
���	�	�	��
����	���
��


1	���	��
���
�"!�,
�	��	��
��
�"$
�	��	��


���
�����"


*������
;�7
�
�����������
����
���	�	��
�	��
���


���(���"
 #��
 ��������
 ����	���
 &����	����
 ���


����
�
�	���
�������
��	�
�����
���
���
����	��
�


���
�������
���	�������"







�������� ��������'
 #��
 ����
 	�
 	�������
 ��
 ��
 �


���	��	�
 ��������
 ���
 ��
 ����
 ���
 �	�	��
 ���


���(���
	�������
�	��	�
�����
�����
�����
	"�"
����


���
 ���
 �	���	�
 ����
 �������
 ���
 '�����
 ���


'���	����G)�����	�(
 �����"
 =�
 ���	�	��%
 ��


����	���
��
����
�	��
�	��
������
������	�����
��


������
����
���(���
��	�(
���������
������
���
�	��


�	��
��
	�����������
	�
��
���
����
(�	�(
������"



9�
����(�
��
���
���(���"





=�
���	�	��
���
�����	�(
����(��
����
����
����
��
���
<�����
���
���	����
�����:�/
����	��
	�
�����


��
������
 ���
����
��
 ��
����
 	������	��
 	�
 	�������
��
 ���
 �	��
�
 ���������	�(
 ���
����
 ��


��������"


����������������� ������������������

���
���	��
�* 
��	��	���
����
�������
���
>"�


������
- !!�.
��
E" 
������
- !�!."


�

���
���	��
�* 
��	��	���
����
�������
���
>"�


������
- !!�.
��
,"$
������
- !��."


�

����������(�
���
�
2����
���(
������
 ����������(�
���
�
2����
���(
������


#��
�����	�
����
����
��	������
���
���
����
 =�
  !!E
 ���
 �����	�
 ����	����
 ��
 �������
 ���


�	��/�
���	���	��
��
���	���
��	������
�	��
������



1	�
 �������	��
 ����������(�
 E�7
 �
 ����


�������
���
�!7
�
����
	�
���
����
��(�	�"





1	�
����
E�7
�
����
�������
���
�!7
�
����


	�
���
����
��(�	�"





����
 ����������(�
 ���	����
 ��	��
 ,�!%!!!


�����(�
��������
�����
�
�* 
����
����"





D������


>!7
 �
 ����������(�
 ���	�����
 ����
 �����


������"





E�7
 �
 ����������(�
 ���	�����
 ����
 �����


������"


#��
45
���
�%�>�%>����
�
2�����
�8�
����		��


�����
����"



#��
45
���
�%�;�%$E���
�
2�����
�8�
����		��


�����
����"



33




 


����������(�
 ���
 �%!!!
 �	����
 ��	��	�(�%
 ,!


���	���
���������
K
 ;
���������	��
�����"


����������(�
 ���
 �%!�,
 �	����
 ��	��	�(�%
 ,�


���������
 ���������
 ���
  ;
 ���������	��


�����"






 ����������(�
 ���
 �����
 +������0
 #��
 ����


�	�	���
�������
����
	�
���
45









34



�

�

��������	�
�	���	�����������	��������	������	�����

���������	
�����������	���

���	������������������������

��	�������������	��������������

����	�����
������	����

�

�

�� ��������������������������	������ ���	����!����	�������	����������	���������	

��  �	��������"��������������	�������#$���������
���%&���������'��	

�� #$��������������	��������	���'���������(���%)����*�+�������(����)�	

����	

�� �*&������������,����	���
�����	�����������������������������
���

�� -�������	����	������� ���	
�	�����.�//�0������������������.*�1����������2����.�''���

�

�� 3�������������������#$���������
��+%&���

�� 4��	�����������
�	����
������	�����	��������4�����	����

����-���	��������	���1'������/��

�� 3��������	��������#$������������%�'��������

�� 5������	������������������	����	���������������	�

����6������	��	��������������������������	�������������

��&�
����	������
��������	���������������	���

7�����������������6�����������	�

����	�������������������	������

��������������
���������������

������������	
����	����������

�������������'�����	���������	�

�	����������

�� 1%&���� ���	
�	�����	����������������	�����	��

�� "��� �������� 8����� ���� 7���	� ��������� ��������� �� �	������� 
�� ���� -���	������� 5������ �� 
���

�	��������

����	

�� 5�������������������9:!��	����	����������������������	����	�����������	�����;�	�������

�� $�����&������������	����-�	�������
����	�������	��

�� <!����=	������	���������	���������������������������.*'����������	��

�� =������������������!�����	�����������������������	������	�

	����������

��  	������������	�����!����	���������	������������	������������

��  	�����������	���������	�������������	��	���������

���	���������������	� ���	
�	����,��	��������	���	���
�� 5�������7���	���������	����������
����������	��

 ���	
�	�����
��1�&������������"��������������	���������

�����
��������������

5������	���������	���������	���

��������>	����������
���������

�������	���������������?�����

���������

�

��  ���	
�	��������������������������	���������	�����������	���	����������9:�	

��  ���	
�	��������%�@	����8����5��	��	

�� "������
�	��������������	����=�	��$���������	������	���%����*%�
��������AA�>�������

�� "���B�����������	��	��	������������	������������������@	����#	�������������-�	������

����	

�� C������'����-���������������
����%��������	�����������

�� 4��	�����������
�	�������������������������������	���

1A&����'�&��

�� 4��	�����������
�	�����	���������������	���������8�	�����	�

 ���	
�	������	���'��������%%������

�� C���	����������������	�����������
�	����@	����8�������*��

�� ����� �	��"	��������������������	��������6�����������������������

�������	����������	����������������������������������	��

5���
������������	������	������

�����������������
���	���

������
�����	�������

���	���	����
�����	����

��������

�� "���7����-����	���������-����	�����-6��������(7---)�3�>9���������������������������/��	���	
��������

	���������������������	�����������������	�������	�������	��������	����������������������������

�� "���9:������%A%�+1/������@��
���8�	���C����	�����#���������	���������	����	�����

�� "���9:���
��������	�����������	���>/�&������������������
�	���������������	��	�������

����	

�� "���9:�����	������������	�������	�������/������������������������	�������	�����	��

�� "������������������������������%������������	������

�	���	�������	�����	���

�� D�����������������������	������������������
�������	�����

�� C�����������������������������������������
���������

�	���	�������	�����	����

�� 4��#��
	������	������ ���	
�	������%&�������������	������

���������
������	�������������	������	�����������	�������

�� 4�����1������������������������������	����������!����	�����������������8��	�	���������������

�� E���5����1%&�����	����	����������/�&������������	���-���5�������

�� "��	���	����/%����������������������������A+&��	�������������

�� "����	��!���	�>����������	������	�����	�����.��
��������������>	��������	�����

����	

�� =	�����!����	��	��������	����+�����������������������������	�����	��

�� C�����������������		������������
�����������������������

������
���������	����������

�� 5�������8��	�	���������������

�� D��������������������������������	��������������

'�&����������������������
��

�	������������	�������������

������������������������

APPENDIX B

3
5



�

�

�

�

�

5�������������������������

���	��������%������	���	���

�������&������
��	���������

	����������������	�

	�����	����

�� 4��	��������	����	���������	�	�����	�������������������

	�������������	���	���'�����A�&��

��=�����������B��������	�������������	�����

��C�����������������������������������������	������������������

���>���������������(��������>�������)���

��  ���	
�	�����	�������	��������/+&��������	����������������������F����

�� -��	�����	����	����������������G�	��7����7���!������������	������������������������������

�� "���7����-����	���������-����	�����-6��������(7---)�3�>9�����������	��	���������	�����������

�����	������������	�	�������������	���������������������������������������	��
������	������������

�����	�����������	�������������

����	

�� 7������	�����
�����11��������������������������	�����	����-��������������

�5������	�������
�����	����	��

������������	�����������A�&��������

?��	���������
��H�	����������

�� "	��������������.+��/������	�������	�?����������������A&�	��������������	�?��	�����

�� "���������������		��������������	������.%���������������	����������
����	������

�� #��������������
��������	��������>�������������
�	���
����/�������	�����	����	��

����		

�� $�	�������	��������������������A&���	��?��	������������
��������
����

�� "��>���	���������?��	�����������9:��	������	�%�������

�� 4��	�����������
�	����
������������	�����������	���+��

�����F�+����*���

�� 4��	�����������
�	����������	���������=����
�������	�������

�	���A%������+��������������

�� "����	���	�����������	�
���������	���������	��������
������

�������	����	����������������
�������������

7�������
��	������������������

6������������	��������	������

�����������������������

	��������

��  ���	
�	�����������%*�������
���������*%������������������������A�����	��������	����

�� -�������	�� ���	
�	�����I���������
�������%�����>'�����������	��

�� =	��������	������1����������%�����������	������	�����	�������

�� +A&����-��������������	��������F��������������������	������������������������������������

��  ���	
�	��������8�		��I�����0�"�������������������	����	���������9:�

�� 4��	�����������
�	�������������
	�	�����
�	�
��+&����������

�	�����
�������������A1���

�� 4��	������������������������������	����	��	������
����&�

���	���	������	��	�����
����������%�������

�� 4��	�����������
�	����������������������	���������	���

/���������*������
�����*��

�� �/������	��������	���������������@	������	������		6��	����

�� "������������������	�����������%�A���?�
������������	�
����� %*��������������������������	

�� 4�����������*&���� ���	
�	����������(A�+�%)���	��������������	���������	�����	����%�*&����������	

�� "����	�������������!��������������	����������������
�������.*������.����	

�� "�����������������������	�����������	���������	���	���������=	�����@�����������
�������.%������

.���������������������������	����������������	

����		

�� �+���������������������
�������������	���������������9:�	

�� 4��	�����������
�	����?�
�����������������������	�
����&��

�� 3�����������������������������
���&�����������

�� 9���	��������������������	����������	������������������

����	��������
�6���������	����	���	�������������������

��������������@���	�����!���	��������	�����������������	���


�����*���

5��������������F���������	��!�

��������������
�������������

�������	�������������	���������


�������������9:�

7�����������������	����������	��

��	�������������������������������

�6���������	�����	��������

�

�� #�����������%�&�����	����������

�� J�����2�����������	�����	�����������
���������������	��

�� K�����������!���	����������������	�����	��������	�����	������	��
��'&��

����		

�� 5��	�2��������+1&��������	���#�	���	��B��	��D������	���������������������

�� 4��	�����������
�	��������������������	��������������

�����������	�������
��E���������	������%*��������������+���������

��	��������

3
6



 

Serco Internal 
1 
 

 

 

CABINET  
 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM No. 6 

24 MARCH 2014 PUBLIC REPORT 

 

Cabinet Member(s) responsible: Councillor Fitzgerald, Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care 

Contact Officer(s): Jana Burton, Executive Director Adult Social Care, Health 
and Well Being 

Mubarak Darbar, Head of Commissioning Learning 
Disabilities and Autism, Adult Social Care  

Tel: 452409 

 

Tel: 452509 

 
TRANSFORMING DAY OPPORTUNITIES FOR ADULTS UNDER 65 
 

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S 

FROM : Director of Adult Social Care Deadline date :  
 

 
1)   To receive the feedback form the 8 week consultation on the proposals for the modernisation 

of day services for adults under 65 
 

2)   To note the closure of the Gloucester Centre and alternative arrangements made for existing 
service users 
 

3)   To approve the proposals for development of the future model in section 4 of the report and 
that a report be presented to Cabinet to determine the final form of delivery model and to 
accordingly authorise procurement and other actions 
 

4)    To note that this will include some decommissioning of existing day facilities once the new 
model has been determined  

 
 

 
1.   ORIGIN 

 The purpose of the consultation was to seek the views of service users, parent carers, 
staff, partners and providers on the transformation of support for adults under 65 and 
modernisation of day services  

 
BACKGROUND 

1.1 Proposals for public consultation were approved by Cabinet on 16th December 2013 
following a nine month review of day services for adults under 65 years of age with a 
physical and/or learning disability 

 
1.2 In the Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS), agreed at Full Council in March 2013, the 

Council agreed to change adult social care services to put a greater emphasis on helping 
all adults to maintain their independence for as long as possible, to support them to stay 
living in their own homes, and enable them to play a bigger part in the communities in 
which they live. It was agreed a review of day services for people with learning and physical 
disabilities would be carried out to see if they were still meeting the needs of the people 
using them or if they could be offered differently. 

 
1.3 The aim was to maximise the use of mainstream community facilities such as sports 

centres, theatres, swimming pools as well as employment and volunteering opportunities so 
that people are able to improve their skills. 
 

37



 

Serco Internal 
2 
 

1.4 The proposals stated that this review ‘could result in a reduction in the number of separate 
day centres with more activities delivered from other community facilities.’ However, a 
commitment was made to continue to provide specialist day care facilities for people with 
profound or multiple disabilities. 
The paper presented to Cabinet on 16th December 2013 had three key proposals that went 
to consultation on the 6th January 2014. These proposals are as follows: 

 
a. Investing more in Reablement and Transitional Support to help people gain 

employment and skills for living 
 

b. To redesign how the current day services operate and reinvest in support that 
prevents people from needing long term support from Adult Social Care and helps them to 
maintain their independence in the community 
 

c. To redesign how people’s future opportunities are governed and managed  
 

The Council currently runs three day centres and pays for people to attend day centres run 
by other organisations including health across Peterborough. These centres are only open 
five-days-a week, on average from 9am till 4pm.  They offer mainly personal care and 
leisure-based activities often provided in an institutional setting.  A further centre, the 
Gloucester Centre is provided by Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Foundation Trust 
(C.P.F.T.) 

 
2.  CONSULTATION EVENTS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
 
2.1 the eight week consultation took place between 6th January 2014 and 3rd March 2014. The 

proposals have been consulted on at thirteen separate formal consultation events across 
Peterborough. The responses include comments at events, completed surveys, emails, 
letters, Facebook, Twitter, telephone consultation and face-to-face meetings. 

 
 

2.2 Below is the breakdown of the activities and detailing people that attended the event and 
the response received during the consultation period: 

 
Activities 

 
Ø 550 e-mails and letters sent to families, carers and services users 
Ø 175 e-mails and letters sent to provider organisations and stakeholders 
Ø 13 events held for staff, partners and providers, families and services users, the 

public and councillors  
Ø 1 presentation to the All Party Policy Group 
Ø Proposals presented to Scrutiny Commission for Health Issues  
Ø Articles in Peterborough City Council internal website and internal newsletters  
Ø Articles in Members Bulletin for all councillors 
Ø Explanatory emails and letters to staff, all councillors, MPs 
Ø Posts and Tweets on Facebook and Twitter 
Ø Explanatory, easy to access videos on YouTube and Peterborough City Council 

website and easy read Living My Life microsite 
Ø Film sharing new models or care elsewhere in the region and Peterborough City 

Council. Vision for change 
 
Response 
 

Ø 260 people attended the events 
Ø 425  comments were received 
Ø 99 formal survey responses were received 
Ø 1517 website visits / clicks on the Living My Life website 
Ø 17 phone calls, e-mails, letters and comments 

 
 

38



 

Serco Internal 
3 
 

 
2.3 A consultation questionnaire was produced in easy read language and was further revised 

following feedback to make it even more accessible.  This was done in recognition of the 
fact that not everyone would attend the consultation events and the key messages needed 
to be easily understood.     
   

2.4 In addition to the thirteen consultation events a report was presented to the Scrutiny 
Commission for Health Issues on the 22 January 2014 and was positively received   
 

2.5 The proposals were also taken to the Learning Disabilities and Autism Partnership Board 
on the 28 January 2014 and made recommendations which were considered by the 
Learning Disability Section 75 Board 
 

 
3 CONSULTATION ON THE PROPOSALS 

 
3.1 Further to the Cabinet paper in December 2013, Cambridgeshire & Peterborough 

Foundation Trust (C.P.F.T.) gave formal notification to P.C.C. that they would withdraw 
providing day services at the Gloucester Centre (G.C.) for people with Learning Disabilities 
as they support and endorse the direction of travel approved by Cabinet to modernise and 
provide more personalised support. 
  
There are thirty nine people that are on the G.C. register, some attend daily but the vast 
majority attend on a sessional basis averaging around 2 days per week.  Of the thirty nine 
people that are on the register thirty five people are PCC’s responsibility and four people 
that CPFT have been providing day care from neighbouring authorities which C.P.F.T are in 
direct contact with to find alternatives.   
  
Of the thirty five Peterborough City Council people, six people live with parent carers and 
the remaining twenty nine live either in a supported living or a residential care home which 
almost all are funded for 24hr care/support from either Adult Social care or through 
Continuing Health Care funding. 
  
Since the announcement to close a social worker/care manager has been working closely 
with the thirty five service users and their families and/or the principle care provider 
undertaking the review and developing a support plan in line with the personalisation 
agenda.     
  
We have met with family and parent carers of people that attend G.C. in January and 
February to discuss progress and listen to their views. Alternative services will have been 
agreed and there will be fully implemented by the end of March and follow up reviews will 
be held with service users/parent carers and newly commissioned services mid-year to 
ensure that these continue meet service user needs and to address any issues which may 
have arisen since closure. 

 
   
3.2 We have received extensive and comprehensive feedback from parents, carers, service 

users, staff, partners and providers. The feedback will be analysed and used on an 
ongoing basis to inform the shape of the future model of service delivery which will be 
developed over the coming months. This can be viewed on the Council website. 
 
The feedback on the consultation survey attached here as Appendix A also provides very 
useful information about the skills and support required to ensure the new models of care 
can work well. Supporting individuals to acquire the necessary skills and confidence and 
mitigate risks will inform the ‘Transitional Support’ plans for individuals to acquire the 
necessary skills over time. This was a key element agreed by Cabinet in February 2013 
when eligibility criteria were changed, so that individuals already receiving care and 
support could have their support reduced safely over time. It was also acknowledged that 
many individuals may acquire much greater independence but still have some areas of 
their lives where there is a risk which might become ‘critical/substantial’ if some form of 

39



 

Serco Internal 
4 
 

statutory support is not provided e.g. money management, vulnerability in personal 
relationships etc. Risk assessment will continue to be a key part of the review process. 

 
3.3 The three key overriding themes are: 

 
a Community :  
 

The consultation feedback said that the community support in terms of activities 
such as developing life skills and accessible facilities needed to be considered.  
 
The consultation also said there were good and bad options already available in the 
community, but in general there is not enough choice. 
 
We will action by:  
 
Working with organisations including libraries, colleges, leisure centres, pools, 
transport providers to improve the current provider offer to disabled service 
users and look at potential investment of funds for improvement. Invite new 
providers from around the country, especially social enterprises, charities, and 
user-led organisations, to come and help us increase the community options 
available for people with disabilities. 
 
Improve access to Personal Assistants for people with disabilities, and clearly 
articulate entitlements and use of Direct Payments and benefits.  
 
Launch an education and awareness campaign targeting the local community – 
both adults and children – to increase understanding and tolerant behavior towards 
people with disabilities.  
 
Set up a steering group including service users, parent and carer representative to 
oversee the next stages of development and ensure all those currently receiving a 
service are kept informed and updated 
 
All the feedback received on the consultation in relation to Community will be fed 
into the next stage of implementation.    

 
b People:  
 

The consultation feedback said that people need support to gain skills.  However it 
was recognised that many people with disabilities had already begun this journey. 
 
The consultation feedback said that people need to think about how to create paid 
jobs with trustworthy employers who understand disability issues but to ensure that 
the financial impacts work may have on benefits, is understood and made clear.   
 
We will action: 
 
Increase our work with local employers and invest in micro-enterprises which are 
self-sustaining.  
 
To do this we are already investing in more job coach hours in the Supported 
Employment team to carry out a review of the job market in Peterborough and raise 
awareness about employing people with disabilities.  
 
Support each person on an individual basis to ensure that there is no negative 
financial impact as a result of having a paid job.  
 
Work harder to involve people with more profound needs through greater 
visibility of senior staff and specialist communications support in future 
consultations and discussions 

40



 

Serco Internal 
5 
 

 
All the feedback received on the consultation in relation to People will be fed into 
the next stage of implementation.    

 
c Place :  
 

The consultation feedback said that people want to have some safe places to go to 
 and need a safe environment with the right facilities.   

 
The consultation feedback was strong on the need for a base for people with very 
complex and profound needs that ensures staff are trained and have the right skills. 
However, there was also strong feeling that it must not isolate people with complex   
needs. 
 
We will consider and action in the implementation stage: 
 
Not to close all the day centres and consider the environment for people with 

 complex needs.  
 
Reinvest to improve any day centre base that will be used for future provision                              

 and invest in smaller bases with better facilities.  
 
Involve people with complex needs alongside people with less complex 

 disabilities in a mixed environment. 
 
Invest in better equipped facilities around the city to make the community 

 accessible to people of all levels of need.  
 
All the feedback received on the consultation in relation to Place will be fed into the 
next stage of implementation.    

 
4.0    FUTURE MODEL FOLLOWING THE CONSULTATION 

 
 

 It is clear from the consultation that there remains anxiety around changes to the existing 
models of building based services which offer perceived security and stability and which 
have been a part of provided services over a number of years. 
 
It is also clear that current services have been designed and used to address aggregated 
needs of specific client groups and not as a result of individual assessments and reviews 
aimed at maximising each person’s potential for independence and social inclusion within 
the community.  
 
The two models are not necessarily mutually exclusive and capital investment injected into 
strategically located community bases can offer local solutions which meet the needs of 
service users and facilitate community inclusion.  
 
Consideration has also been given to a more specialist site which whilst it may cater for high 
dependency and complex needs of some service users, will also offer other services into the 
community and draw the community into the service through micro enterprise and 
employment opportunities. In the previous paper to Cabinet  we identified that this would 
need to accommodate about 50 service users with complex needs. During the consultation 
there was strong representations that this was important to the families and carers of people 
with complex needs. 
 
The exact locations and configuration of these facilities will be subject to a more detailed 
options appraisal but will at the very least, result in the decommissioning of one or more of 
the existing day centres within our own in house provision and commissioned day services 
within the independent sector. 
 

41



 

Serco Internal 
6 
 

4.1 Satellite locations: 
 
We propose the creation of four satellite facilities around Peterborough to enable service 
users to access these without the need to undertake lengthy journeys to pick up points 
around the city and which can be employed as a base to meet other people and access the 
local community. Each facility will be fully equipped to provide bathing/showering and 
changing provision as well as a communal area to socialise. We are committed to a capital 
investment of up to £500K to ensure that these resources are ready and available to meet 
the needs of service users moving from existing day centre facilities. 
 

4.2 Services specifically for people with complex needs: 
 
The proposals and future provision described in the December 2013 Cabinet paper sets out 
that ‘one model cannot fit all’ and there is a need to provide a service for people with 
profound and complex need.  The consultation offered valuable and informed suggestions 
and assisted in further developing the proposal by recommending this service be provided in 
a mixed environment alongside with people with less complex needs.  This service will still 
continue to be outcome focussed and offer opportunities to develop skills in independent 
living. 
 

4.3 Services to reduce dependency and promote greater opportunity and equality:  
 
People with a low level of physical and/or learning disabilities will be offered models that 
promote greater independence and control of their lives through the assessed needs, 
individual support and personal support planning and budgets.   This could also manifest in 
greater use of Personal Assistants and accessing local community resources. 
 
Work is one of the major defining roles in our lives and provides structure to our week 
as well as generating income. It builds confidence and self-esteem, changing the way people 
are viewed by family and peers. People with learning disabilities also regard paid work as a 
way of making a contribution, of being helpful to other people. Peterborough has 7.2% of 
people with learning disabilities in paid employment which is the same as the national 
average and better than the comparator group of authorities.  Peterborough City Council is in 
6th position out of 15 better than the comparator group average of 6.3%, our target is to 
achieve 8% which will take Peterborough in to the top quartile. 
 
The development of micro-enterprises and support into paid employment will be a significant 
feature of the investment described. 

 
4.4 Developing existing options and attracting investment into Peterborough: 

  
Market Development Events will be organised, with local and national providers, in spring 
2014 to create and consider innovative, creative and flexible models which are fit for the 
future. Inviting local and national providers will help develop community inclusion, 
independent living skills, facilities and services which offer transitional paths to paid 
employment.    

 
There are currently eight independent sector day opportunity providers operating in 
Peterborough supporting people with physical and learning disabilities under spot/individual 
contract arrangements. All eight providers have been involved and fully engaged in pre 
consultation and during the consultation period. Providers will be asked to present proposals 
by July 2014 on how they intend to modernise their service offer as part of the 
transformation plan set out in the Cabinet report December 2013. 

 
 
 

  5 NEXT STEPS  
 

  5.1 The project will move to the next phase in drawing up proposals whilst continuing to engage 
with service users, family carers the independent sector providers and staff and using the 

42



 

Serco Internal 
7 
 

information gathered from the consultation.   
 
5.2 Should the Cabinet approve the recommendations within this paper and the consultation 

feedback report the project will move in to the implementation stage.   
 

6 IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1 Financial Implications 
 

Through the changes introduced across the spectrum of Day Services for Under 65s  
(outlined in the previous Cabinet report), improved management, greater governance and 
better value for money of the independent sector and health-managed contracts, there are 
expected to be savings associated with this project in the region of £400k in 2014/15.  
 
Additional savings are anticipated in 2015-16, the level of which will be dependent on the 
final proposals which will be reported to Cabinet later this year. 
 
Where necessary current resources will be used to reinvest as the shape of the new model 
 takes place in phase two following the Cabinet decision in August 2014.  The proposal will 
require up to £500k of capital investment for satellite locations. The specific requirement will 
be identified in proposals brought back to Cabinet. The funding required will be found form 
resources already allocated in the Adult Social Care Health & Wellbeing capital programme. 

 
6.2 Legal and procurement:  Discussions have taken place with procurement and legal to 

ensure services can be successfully and legally transitioned to an alternative governance 
model.  
 

6.3 Duty to Consult:   Under section 138 of the Local Government and Public Involvement 
 Health Act 2009 the City Council consulted over an eight week period and involved local 
 stakeholders.   The council fulfilled its obligation to conduct a proper consultation and its 
 statutory duties.   The extensive consultation exercise has been carried out and the 
 responses have been properly considered and summarised in the report and appendices. 
 
6.4 Corporate Priorities: Environment Capital: no implications 

 
6.5 Crime and Disorder / Community Safety: no implications 

 
6.6 Discrimination and Equality: Peterborough City Council must consider and comply with the 

Equality Act 2010, and when making decisions of a strategic nature about how it exercises 
its functions and must have due regard to the desirability of exercising its functions in a way 
that designed to reduce the inequalities of outcomes. The Council has considered the 
possible impact of the proposals as set out in the report and has carried out an Equality 
Impact Assessment which has provided an analysis of all the potential effects and possible 
impacts on the relevant community. The conclusions of the Equality Impact Assessment 
were considered to the proposals in the 16 December cabinet report. The Council is 
therefore seeking to ensure it complies with the Act. Equality issues will also be considered 
prior to a final decision being taken.  

6.7 Human Resources: There will be implications for staff, which may include in phase two: 

a)    changes to staff numbers from one area to another 
b)    changes to work activities which may impact JD’s and contracts 
c)   changes of employer in governance model in phase two subject to Cabinet 

approval  
  

There will be continuing engagement with staff and they will be involved with the 
design of the future model through participating in the project work streams.   

43



 

Serco Internal 
8 
 

Once proposals have been developed and there is approval of the future design, a 
formal period of consultation with staff will take place in accordance with legislation 
and policy.  Views and comments on those proposals will be welcomed and 
considered, and responses to views and comments will be provided at the end of 
the consultation period.  No decisions will be made or any action taken until the 
period of consultation is completed.   

6.8 ICT:  There may be changes to IT infrastructure once the design phase has been fully 
considered.   
 

6.9 Property: There may be changes to the property portfolio both decrease in some sites and 
increase in capital investment in bases and redevelopment.  These proposals will be 
considered in the implementation stage.  Early engagement has taken place with strategic 
property and other ASC transformation work streams, and this will continue as the 
implementation phase is embedded.   

 
7 BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 

Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to 
Information) Act 1985) 

 
 Department of Health Summary Report 2009/10 – Personalisation Valuing People Now 
 https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/215891/dh_1

22387.pdf  
 
 Department of Health Report 2009 – Valuing People Now 

http://www.dwp.gov.uk/docs/dla-reform-andover-and-district-mencap-appendix-3.pdf  
 

 Cabinet Paper Transforming Day Opportunities for Adults Under 65
 http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=116&MId=3126&Ver=4  

 
Survey Response and Web Link 
www.peterborough.gov.uk/ascresponses 
 
 

8 APPENDICES 
 

Appendix A Consultation Analysis Report (see Appendix A) 
 

 
 

44



�����������	�
���������������������������������������

�

���������	
��	�������
�	�	������������������ �����������

�
������������������������������������
����������������� �!��"#������

��������	
�������	�����������������	���������������
�����������
������
����������	�����������������	
�������
�������
�����
�

�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

$���������
�

�������������� ���������!������
��	�������
���������������	�	�������

�	�������"������
�������
��	�������������� �����
���

���������
��!�#��������������������
�
$����%���&�'�����������
����� �� ������(���
��������������	
����	���������
����������
����	�
������ �������	�����)�

�

4
5



�����������	�
���������������������������������������

�

���������	
��	�������
�	�	������������������ �����������

�
�

� �

�

�

�

� � � � � � � �

� � � � � � � � � �

�

���������	��
��	���

��	����
�����	����
����
�	�
��
��

��
���
����
��

�
��	���
��
��������������������
�����

����������
����
����
����
����������

��
���
��������
�������	������

�
��	���
��
��������	������������
�����

���	�������
��

��

� 

�!

�"

�#

!!

�#

�!

$��������

$���������
�
�����"�������"

���������
������������	�
���"��������	���)�
�
$����%���&������"�������"

�������	����"�
��	��������� �����*��)�

$������� �
�
���������
��� ������"���������������������
�����+��
�������������������������������� �����
��

�	��������	����"�� �������������������������
���� ���������

�	����	�����������������������������
������������������
������������������������
�����
����������	
������	������
��������������������������
�������	�������������������	����������������������
�������������������������

�

$�%���������������&�
����

$�%����������%����

$�%������������	
�
��������������

$�%���������������������	���	�
���

$�%������������������������������

$�%�������������
��%���	����

$�%�������������
�	�����
�������	�

$�%�������������
�
%	��
�������

#"

 �

#�

 �

#'

()

()

  

$������� 

4
6



�����������	�
���������������������������������������

�

���������	
��	�������
�	�	������������������ �����������

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�

*��	����%��	�%��

*��	��	��
�����%
������
�	��

*��	������

*��	�������%	����
�	�

*��	������������
�	�

*��	���������������	�

�"

��

!�

!!

� 

 )

$��������$���������
�
,���
��������������
��� ������������
�� �
�"

������������	�����

������������ ��

��

�������������
��,��������	 ������������������	��������	������
�� ������������ �����������	����������
�������
���
��������������������������
��������
���� � -�������� ������
�
�����������	����"���������

���
�����������	
��
��)�

$���������
�
����������	����"���������

���
�����������	
�����
����)�

�

��
��������	�����+�),''�������,''��

��
��������	�����+�),''������),''��

-�������������+�),''������),''��

#(

)

#)

$��������

4
7



�����������	�
���������������������������������������

�

���������	
��	�������
�	�	������������������ �����������

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

.��	��/���������	�

.��	��/����

.������
������%���	��/���
�������

.������
������	��
�
��/���
�����

0���/����
�������
��

.������
����������/����

.����/������������%


.��	��/����������	��
��

.����������������	��	�����

.����/�������������������

.��
�/��������������

0���/���
������
���������

����	�1/�����	���
����
���������%���%��������

����	�+�/���
�����������������	�	,

!-

�'

�!

!)

��

�'

��

�-

!#

��

!)

#-

�!

 (

$��������
$���������
�
�
����������� �������
�������������
����������
�	������������
������������� ��������������
.��"� ��������
�����
������

�	���������� ����	�
��	
��
"����������
������������������
�������
�
$����%���&�����������	��������������������
�
�����������	���	������������
������������� ���
��,��������	 ���,
�����
��"��������
�����
�������
��

�	���������� ����	���	
��
"���������������
������
�����

4
8



  

 

 

CABINET  
 

 
AGENDA ITEM No. 7 

24 MARCH 2014 PUBLIC REPORT 

 

Contact Officer: Gemma George, Senior Governance Officer, Democratic 
Services 

Tel. 01733 
452268 

 

OUTCOME OF PETITIONS  
 

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S 
FROM : Directors Deadline date : N/A 

 

 
1. That Cabinet notes the action taken in respect of petitions presented to Full Council. 
 

 
1. ORIGIN OF REPORT 
 

1.1 This report is submitted to Cabinet following the presentation of petitions to Full Council.  
 
2. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT 
 

2.1 The purpose of this report is to update Cabinet on the progress being made in response to 
petitions in accordance with Standing Order 13, of the Council’s Rules of Procedure. 

 
2.2 This report is for Cabinet to consider under its Terms of Reference No. 3.2.3 – ‘To take a 

leading role in promoting the economic, environmental and social well-being of the area’. 

 
3. TIMESCALE  
 

Is this a Major Policy 
Item/Statutory Plan? 

NO 

 
4. OUTCOME OF PETITIONS 
 
4.1 Petition objecting to the poor levels of street lighting in Bradegate Drive / Clifton 

Court area 
 
 This petition was presented to full Council on 29 January 2014 by Councillor Adrian Miners 

and requested that the poor levels of street lighting in the Bradegate Drive / Clifton Court 
area, which had been made worse by the fitting of the new LED lighting, be reassessed for 
improvements. The Council’s Director of Growth and Regeneration responded stating that 
having received correspondence regarding this matter in 2013, the lighting levels in 
Bradegate Drive were double checked to ensure that the correct level of illumination was 
attained on the public highway. On completion of this exercise it was confirmed that the 
light levels on Bradegate Drive were at the correct level for a residential road. The lowest 
light level was at the back of the path/driveway to the side of properties 29 and 30 but this 
was not considered significant enough for a further column. However, upon reflection, unit 
11 could be rotated by a small amount to potentially improve the perception of the lighting 
levels in this area. This had been ordered and would be completed shortly. 

 
 The lighting in the adopted footpath in front of properties 31 to 36 was illuminated in line 

with the appropriate British Standard. The footpath in front of properties 37 to 45 was not an 
adopted footpath and therefore as the scheme manager was informed, it would be 

49



  

necessary to contact Waterloo Housing should the residents desire lighting in this area. The 
Council had contacted the housing association and informed them that residents would like 
additional lighting on the footpath. 

 
 The design of the new lanterns directed all light downwards towards the public highway, 

significantly reducing the amount of light spill. Therefore the amount of light reaching front 
doors, windows and private driveways etc. would be less than experienced with the 
previous lanterns. This could give the perception that the roads and footpaths were dark as 
the general all round glow emitted from the previous lanterns had been reduced, 
particularly if looking out of windows onto the street. However, the Council did not have a 
duty to light private property. 

 
 The LED lights provided a much clearer and cleaner light allowing for improved vision and 

colour rendering. Since changing the lanterns, there had been no representations from the 
Police or other bodies suggesting that there had been any negative effects as a result of 
changing the lanterns. At the end of the financial year there would be approximately 7000 
LED units on the network with the view to continue to increase the volume year on year to 
maximise the energy efficiency of the street lighting network. This would also result in 
significant financial savings for the Council. 

 
4.2 Petition relating to parking issues along Allen Street 
 
 This petition was presented to full Council on 29 January 2014 by Councillor Nazim Khan 

and requested that the Council looked into a number of parking issues, some of which 
related to enforcement matters, along Allen Road. The Council’s Network Manager 
responded stating that he would visit the area to review the situation and to determine what 
action could be taken against the issues raised and also what could be done to improve the 
parking situation.  
 

4.3 Petition objecting to the Selective Licensing of Private Landlords 
 
This petition was presented to full Council on 29 January 2014 by a member of the public, 
Mrs Margaret Randall, opposing the selective licensing proposals and encouraging the 
Council to be open and transparent about the alternative ‘remedies which it had 
considered’. The Council’s Assistant Director for Communities and Targeted Services 
responded stating that work was being undertaken closely with the local campaign group, 
Communities Against Selective Licensing (CASL), to develop an alternative scheme to that 
which was originally proposed. This close working was delivered via a roundtable forum 
and a task and finish sub-group of that forum that comprised CASL representatives, 
individual landlords, letting agents and council officers. CASL led on both the e-petition and 
the petition that was handed in at Council. 
 
The next meeting of the task and finish group was scheduled to take place on 10 March, 
and, if an alternative scheme could be agreed, a roundtable meeting for the whole group 
would be held ahead of a wider public meeting for the community. The revised proposal 
would then go back to Cabinet for debate. 
 
Work would continue to be undertaken with CASL and the Council’s Assistant Director for 
Communities and Targeted Services was optimistic that an alternative scheme could be 
developed that all parties could all commit to, that focused exclusively on criminal landlords, 
agents and bad tenants, and that in no way penalised those that were compliant with 
appropriate legislation’. 
 

4.4 Petition opposing the charge for the fortnightly collection of brown garden waste 
bins  

 
This petition was presented to full Council on 5 March 2014 by a member of the public, Mr 
Darrell Goodliffe, opposing the charge of £39 per year for the fortnightly collection of brown 
garden waste bins and urging that the Cabinet reconsider the proposal to impose this 

50



  

charge and further urging Peterborough City Council to reject the proposal should it be 
made to them. The Council’s Strategic Partnerships Manager responded stating that 
Councillors considered the issue alongside a number of other comments that had been 
made, including comments made directly to the Council, via social media and through the 
local paper, and decided by a vote of 29 to 21 to proceed with the Budget as proposed by 
Cabinet. This would mean that a charge would be introduced for the service from 27 May 
2014. Residents signing up by 20 May would pay £36 and thereafter the charge would be 
£39.  
 

4.5 Follow up on Petition submitted to Council on 4 December 2013 objecting to the 
proposed closure of six Peterborough Children’s Centres by Peterborough City 
Council 
 
This petition was presented to full Council on 4 December 2013 by a member of the public, 
Mrs Angela Brennan, requesting that the proposals to close down six children’s centres and 
to restructure others, be rescinded. The Council’s Director for Communities responded to 
the petition in the first instance, however as the petition contained a significant amount of 
signatures, totalling over 500, it was requested by the lead petitioner that the petition be 
debated by full Council. This debate took place at the meeting held on 29 January 2014. 
 
Following debate at the meeting, a recommendation was proposed and agreed that: 

 
‘Cabinet defer any decision making on the proposals to close children’s centres until further 
alternatives and proposals have been thoroughly explored, considered and consulted on’. 
 
The report, ‘Vision for Early Years Services Including Children’s Centres’ was presented to 
Cabinet on 3 February 2014, and members of the public were permitted to speak. Following 
debate and consideration of the report, the proposals contained therein for the delivery of 
the Children’s Centres were approved. 
 
A request to call-in the executive decision was made on 5 February 2014 and this call-in 
was considered and upheld by the Creating Opportunities and Tackling Inequalities 
Scrutiny Committee where it was agreed that the decision be referred back to full Council 
for consideration and debate.  
 
On 26 February 2014, the call-in referral was considered and debated by full Council at an 
extraordinary meeting. Council could either: 
 
(a) Not agree to the request to call-in, when the decision shall take effect immediately; or 

(b) Refer the decision back to the decision maker for reconsideration, setting out its 

concerns. 

The call-in request was not agreed and the decision took effect immediately. 
 

5. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

5.1 Standing Orders require that Council receive a report about the action taken on petitions.  
As the petitions presented in this report have been dealt with by Cabinet Members or 
officers it is appropriate that the action taken is reported to Cabinet, prior to it being 
included within the Executive’s report to full Council.   

 
6. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 

6.1 Any alternative options would require an amendment to the Council’s Constitution to 
remove the requirement to report to Council.  

 
7. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

7.1 There are no legal implications. 
 

51



  

8. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985) 
  

8.1 Petitions presented to full Council and responses from officers. 

52


	Agenda
	3(a) 24 February 2014
	3(b) 26 February 2014
	4 Call-in Referral from Sustainable Growth and Environment Capital Scrutiny Committee of 12 March 2014 - Executive Decision - Update on Proposed Ground Mounted and Wind Developments at Newborough, Morris Fen and America Farm - FEB14/CAB/16
	4. Appendix A - Call-In Referral - Update on Proposed Ground Mounted Solar and Windfarm Developments

	5 Environment Capital Action Plan (ECAP)
	5. Appendix A - Environment Capital Action Plan (ECAP)
	5. Appendix B - Environment Capital Action Plan (ECAP)

	6 Transforming Day Opportunities for Adults Under 65
	6. Appendix A - Transforming Day Opportunities for Adults Under 65

	7 Outcome of Petitions

